An Abridged Reading List in Social Movements

Prepared By:

Aaron M. McCright, Ph.D. Lyman Briggs College Department of Sociology Environmental Science and Policy Program Michigan State University July 15, 2014

TABLE OF CONTENTS

			Page
А.			
	1.	Overviews of the Field	2
	2.	Early Collective Behavior Perspectives	3
	3.	Major Books	4
В.	Th	eoretical Perspectives	8
	1.	Resource Mobilization Theory	8
	2.	Political Process Model	9
	3.	New Social Movements Theories	10
C.	Re	cent Theoretical Synthesizing	11
	1.	Mobilizing Structures	11
		a. General	11
		b. Formal Organizations	12
	2.	Political Opportunity Structures	12
	3.	Cultural Framing Processes	13
D.	Co	ntention Repertoires, Strategies, and Tactics	15
Е.	Mo	ovement-(Counter)Movement Interaction	
	1.	Countermovements	
	2.	Movement Diffusion	18
F.		cromobilization and Mobilization Potential	
	1.	General	19
	2.	Public Support/Opinion	
G.	Co	llective, Movement, and Organizational Identities	22
	1.	General	
	2.	Collective Identity	
	3.	Movement or Organizational Identity	
Н.		ovement Outcomes	
I.	Sp	ecial Topics	
	1.	Cycles of Contention and Abeyance	
	2.	State Repression and Policing	
	3.	Culture and Ideology	
	4.	Emotions	
	5.	Media	
	6.	Globalization and International/Transnational Activism	30

NOTE: This reading list is not intended to be comprehensive. Rather, it is merely a guide to the major works within most of the core areas of US and European social movements scholarship since the late 1970s.

A. Overview of Social Movements Scholarship

1. Overviews of the Field

- Almeida, Paul D. 2008. "Social Movements." Pp. 603-608 in *International Encyclopedia of the Social Sciences*, edited by W. A. Darity. Second Edition. Detroit: Macmillan.
- Beaford, Robert D., Timothy B. Gongaware, and Danny L. Valadez. 2000. "Social Movements." Pp. 2717-2727 in *Encyclopedia of Sociology*, edited by Edgar F. Borgatta and Rhonda Montgomery. Volume Four. New York: Macmillan Reference USA.
- Cohen, Jean. 1985. "Strategy or Identity: New Theoretical Paradigms and Contemporary Social Movements." *Social Research* 52:663-716.
- Crist, John T., and John D. McCarthy. 1996. "'If I Had a Hammer': The Changing Methodological Repertoire of Collective Behavior and Social Movements Research." *Mobilization* 1:87-102.
- della Porta, Donatella and Mario Diani. 1999. Social Movements: An Introduction. Oxford: Blackwell.
- Diani, Mario. 1992. "The Concept of Social Movement." The Sociological Review 40:1-25.
- Hanagan, Michael. 1998. "Social Movements: Incorporation, Disengagement, and Opportunities—A Long View." Pp. 3-30 in *From Contention to Democracy*, edited by Marco G. Giugni, Doug McAdam, and Charles Tilly. Boulder, CO: Rowman and Littlefield.
- Klandermans, Bert, Suzanne Staggenborg, and Sidney Tarrow. 2002. "Conclusion: Blending Methods and Building Theories in Social Movement Research." Pp. 314-349 in *Methods of Social Movement Research*, edited by Bert Klandermans and Suzanne Staggenborg. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- McAdam, Doug. 1998. "Conclusion: The Future of Social Movements." Pp. 229-245 in From Contention to Democracy, edited by Marco G. Giugni, Doug McAdam, and Charles Tilly. Boulder, CO: Rowman and Littlefield.
- McAdam, Doug, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer N. Zald. 1988. "Social Movements." Pp. 695-737 in *Handbook of Sociology*, edited by Neil J. Smelser. Newbury Park, CA: Sage.
- McAdam, Doug, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer N. Zald. 1996. "Introduction: Opportunities, Mobilizing Structures, and Framing Processes—Toward a Synthetic, Comparative Perspective on Social Movements." Pp. 1-20 in Comparative Perspectives on Social Movements: Political Opportunities, Mobilizing Structures, and Cultural Framings, edited by Doug McAdam, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer Zald. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- McAdam, Doug, Robert J. Sampson, Simon Weffer, and Heather MacIndoe. 2005. "There Will be Fighting in the Streets': The Distorting Lens of Social Movement Theory." *Mobilization* 10:1-18.
- McAdam, Doug, Sidney Tarrow, and Charles Tilly. 1996. "To Map Contentious Politics." *Mobilization* 1:17-34.
- Meyer, David S. 2002. "Opportunities and Identities: Bridge-Building in the Study of Social Movements." Pp. 3-21 in *Social Movements: Identity, Culture, and the State*, edited by David S. Meyer, Nancy Whittier, and Belinda Roberts. New York: Oxford University Press.
- Morris, Aldon D. 2000. "Charting Futures for Sociology: Social Organization Reflections on Social Movement Theory: Criticisms and Proposals." *Contemporary Sociology* 29: 445-454.
- Morris, Aldon, and Suzanne Staggenborg. 2004. "Leadership in Social Movements." Pp. 171-196 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by D. A. Snow, S. A. Soule and H. Kriesi. Oxford, UK: Blackwell.
- Mueller, Carol M. 1992. "Building Social Movement Theory." Pp. 3-25 in *Frontiers in Social Movement Theory*, edited by Aldon M. Morris and Carol M. Mueller. New Haven: Yale University Press.
- Rucht, Dieter, Ruud Koopmans, and Friedhelm Neidhardt 1999. "Introduction: Protest as Subject of Empirical Research." Pp. 7-18 in *Acts of Dissent: New Developments in the Study of Protest*, edited by Dieter Rucht, Ruud Koopmans, and Friedhelm Neidhardt. Lanham, MD: Rowman and Littlefield.
- Snow, David A. 2004. "Social Movements as Challenges to Authority: Resistance to an Emerging Conceptual Hegemony." *Research in Social Movements, Conflicts, and Change* 25:3-25.

- Snow, David A., Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. 2004. "Mapping the Terrain." Pp. 3-16 in The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Snow, David, and Danny Trom. 2002. "Case Study and the Study of Social Movements." Pp. 146-172 in Methods of Social Movement Research, edited by Bert Klandermans and Suzanne Staggenborg. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Tilly, Charles. 2003. "Afterword: Agendas for Students of Social Movements." Pp. 246-256 in States, Parties, and Social Movements, edited by Jack A. Goldstone. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.

Touraine, Alain. 2002. "The Importance of Social Movements." Social Movement Studies 1 (1): 89-95.

Walder, Andrew G. 2009. "Political Sociology and Social Movements." Annual Review of Sociology 35:393-412.

2. Early Collective Behavior Perspectives

- Bendor, Jonathan, and Dilip Mookherjee. 1987. "Institutional Structure and the Logic of Collective Action." American Political Science Review 81:290-307.
- Bergesen, Albert, and Max Herman. 1998. "Immigration, Race, and Riot: The 1992 Los Angeles Uprising." American Sociological Review, 633: 39-54.
- Blumer, Herbert. 1969. "Collective Behavior." Pp. 67-121 in Principles of Sociology, edited by A.M. Lee. New York: Barnes and Noble.
- Buechler, Steven M. 2004. "The Strange Career of Strain and Breakdown Theories of Collective Action." Pp. 47-66 in The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements, edited by D. A. Snow, S. A. Soule, and H. Kriesi. Oxford: Blackwell Publishing.

Gamson, William. 1988. "Political Discourse and Collective Action." International Social Movement Research 1:219-244.

- Granovetter, Mark. 1978. "Threshold Models of Collective Behavior." American Journal of Sociology 83:1420-1443.
- Gurr, Ted.1968. "Psychological Factors in Civil Violence." World Politics 20(2):245-78.
- Gurr, Ted. 1970. Why Men Rebel. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- Hardin, Russell. 1982. Collective Action. Baltimore and London: Johns Hopkins University Press.
- Heckathorn, Douglas D. 1996. "The Dynamics and Dilemmas of Collective Action." American Sociological Review 61:250-277.
- LeBon, Gustave. (1895) 1960. The Crowd: A Study of the Popular Mind. NY: Viking Press.
- Marx, Gary T., and James L. Wood. 1975. "Strands of Theory and Research in Collective Behavior." Annual Review of Sociology 1:363-428.
- McVeigh, Rory. 2006. "Structural Influences on Activism and Crime: Identifying the Social Structure of Discontent." American Journal of Sociology 112: 510-566.
- Myers, Daniel J. 1997. "Racial Rioting in the 1960s: An Event History Analysis of Local Conditions." American Sociological Review 62(1): 94-112.
- Morris, Aldon and Cedric Herring. 1987. "Theory and Research in Social Movements: A Critical Review." Annual Review of Political Science 2:137-198.
- Oliver, Pamela E. 1989. "Bringing the Crowd Back In: The Nonorganizational Elements of Social Movements." Research in Social Movements, Conflict and Change 11: 1-30.
- Oliver, Pamela E. 1993. "Formal Models of Collective Action." Annual Review of Sociology 19:271-300. Rule, James. 1988. Theories of Civil Violence. Berkeley: University of California Press.
- Schwartz, Michael. 1976. Radical Protest and Social Structure: The Southern Farmers' Alliance and Cotton Tenancy, 1880-1890. New York: Academic Press.
- Smelser, Neil J. 1962. Theory of Collective Behavior. New York: Free Press.
- Snow, David A., Daniel M. Cress, Liam Downey, and Andrew W. Jones. 1998. "Disrupting the 'Quotidian': Reconceptualizing the Relationship between Breakdown and the Emergence of Collective Action." Mobilization 3:1-22.

Turner, Ralph H., and Lewis M. Killian. 1987. *Collective Behavior*. 3rd ed. Englewood, Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall.

Useem, Bert. 1985. "Disorganization and the New Mexico Prison Riot of 1980." *American Sociological Review* 50:677-688.

Useem, Bert. 1998. "Breakdown Theories of Collective Action." Annual Review of Sociology 24:215-238.

Young, Michael P. 2002. "Confessional Protest: The Religious Birth of US National Social Movements." *American Sociological Review* 67:660-688.

3. Major Books

Alexander, Jeffrey C., Bernhard Giesen, and Jason L. Mast. 2006. Social Performance: Symbolic Action, Cultural Pragmatics, and Ritual. London: Cambridge University Press.

Anderson, Terry H. 1995. The Movement and the Sixties. New York: Oxford University Press.

- Andrews, Kenneth T. 2004. Freedom is a Constant Struggle: The Mississippi Civil Rights Movement and Its Legacy. Chicago: Chicago University Press.
- Banaszak, Lee Ann. 1996. Why Movements Succeed or Fail. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.

Bandy, Joe, and Jackie Smith. 2005. *Coalitions Across Borders: Transnational Protest and the Neoliberal Order*. Rowman & Littlefield.

- Blee, Kathleen M. 1991. Women of the Klan: Racism and Gender in the 1920s. Berkeley: University of California Press.
- Blee, Kathleen M. 2002. *Inside Organized Racism: Women in the Hate Movement*. Berkeley: University of California Press.
- Buechler, Steven M. 1990. Women's Movements in the United States: Woman Suffrage, Equal Rights and Beyond. New Brunswick, NJ: Rutgers University Press.

Buechler, Steven M. 2000. Social Movements in Advanced Capitalism: The Political Economy and Cultural Construction of Social Activism. New York: Oxford University Press.

- Carter, April. 1992. *Peace Movements: International Protest and World Politics Since 1945.* New York: Longman.
- Carter, Gregg Lee. 1997. The Gun Control Movement. New York: Twayne Publishers.
- Chong, Dennis. 1991. Collective Action and the Civil Rights Movement. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.
- Clemens, Elisabeth S. 1997. *The People's Lobby: Organizational Innovation and the Rise of Interest Group Politics in the United States, 1890-1925.* Chicago: University of Chicago Press.
- Costain, Anne N. 1992. Inviting Women's Rebellion: A Political Process Interpretation of the Women's Movement. Baltimore: Johns Hopkins University Press.
- Costain, Anne N., and Andrew S. McFarland, editors. 1998. *Social Movements and American Political Institutions*. Boulder: Rowman and Littlefield.
- Croteau, David, William Hoynes, and Charlotte Ryan. 2005. *Rhyming Hope And History: Activists, Academics, And Social Movement Scholarship.* Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Cruikshank, Margaret. 1992. The Gay and Lesbian Liberation Movement. New York: Routledge.
- Dalton, Russell J. 1994. *The Green Rainbow: Environmental Groups in Western Europe*. New Haven: Yale University Press.
- Dalton, Russell J., and Manfred Kuechler, editors. 1990. *Challenging the Political Order: New Social* and Political Movements in Western Democracies. Cambridge: Polity Press.
- Darnovsky, Marcy, Barbara Epstein, and Richard Flacks, editors. 1995. *Cultural Politics and Social Movements*. Philadelphia: Temple University Press.
- Davenport, Christian. 2010. *Media Bias, Perspective, and State Repression: The Black Panther Party.* Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Davenport, Christian. 2007. *State Repression and the Domestic Democratic Peace*. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Davenport, Christian, Hank Johnston, and Carol Mueller, editors. 2005. *Repression and Mobilization*. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.

- Davis, Gerald, Doug McAdam, W. Richard Scott, and Mayer Zald. 2005. *Social Movements and Organization Theory*. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- della Porta, Donatella, and Dieter Rucht. 1991. Left-Libertarian Movements in Context: A Comparison of Italy and West Germany, 1965-1990. Berlin: Wissenschaftszentrum.
- della Porta, Donatella, and Herbert Reiter, editors. 1998. *Policing Protest: The Control of Mass Demonstrations in Western Democracies*. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- della Porta, Donatella, and Mario Diani. 1999. *Social Movements: An Introduction*. Oxford: Blackwell Publishers.
- della Porta, Donatella, and Sidney Tarrow, editors. 2004. *Transnational Protest and Global Activism*. Boulder, CO: Rowman and Littlefield.
- Diamond, Sara. 1995. *Roads to Dominion: Right-Wing Movements and Political Power in the United States.* New York: Guilford Press.
- Diani, Mario, and Doug McAdam, editors. 2003. Social Movements and Networks: Relational Approaches to Collective Action. Oxford University Press.
- Earl, Jennifer, and Katrina Kimport. 2011. *Digitally Enabled Social Change Activism in the Internet Age*. Cambridge, MA: MIT Press.

Engel, Stephen M. 2001. *The Unfinished Revolution: Social Movement Theory and the Gay and Lesbian Movement*. New York: Cambridge University Press.

- Evans, Sara. 1979. Personal Politics: The Roots of Women's Liberation in the Civil Rights Movement and the New Left. New York: Vintage Books.
- Eyerman, Ron, and Andrew Jamison. 1991. *Social Movements: A Cognitive Approach*. University Park, PA: Pennsylvania State University Press.
- Finsen, Lawrence, and Susan Finsen. 1994. *The Animal Rights Movement in America: From Compassion to Respect*. New York: Twayne Publishers.
- Foran, John. 2005. *Taking Power: On the Origins of Third World Revolutions*. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Freeman, Jo, editor. 1983. Social Movements of the Sixties and Seventies. New York: Longman.
- Freeman, Jo, and Victoria Johnson, editors. 1999. *Waves of Protest: Social Movements Since the Sixties*. Rowman and Littlefield.
- Gamson, William A. 1990. The Strategy of Social Protest. Second Edition. Belmont, CA: Wadsworth.
- Giugni, Marco. 2004. Social Protest and Policy Change: Ecology, Antinuclear, and Peace Movements in Comparative Perspective. Boulder, CO: Roman and Littlefield.
- Giugni, Marco, Doug McAdam, and Charles Tilly, editors. 1998. *From Contention to Democracy*. Boulder: Rowman and Littlefield.
- Giugni, Marco, Doug McAdam, and Charles Tilly. 1999. *How Social Movements Matter*. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Goldstone, Jack A. 2003. *States, Parties, and Social Movements*. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Goodwin, Jeff. 2001. No Other Way Out: States and Revolutionary Movements, 1945-1991. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Goodwin, Jeff, James M. Jasper, and Francesca Polletta, editors. 2001. *Passionate Politics: Emotions and Social Movements*. Chicago: University Of Chicago Press.
- Goodwin, Jeff, and James M. Jasper, editors. 2009. *The Social Movements Reader: Cases and* Concepts. Second Edition. New York: Wiley-Blackwell.
- Gottlieb, Robert. 1993. Forcing the Spring: The Transformation of the American Environmental Movement. Washington, D.C.: Island Press.
- Gould, Deborah B. 2009. *Moving Politics: Emotion and Act Up's Fight Against AIDS*. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.
- Guidry, John A., Michael D. Kennedy, and Mayer N. Zald, editors. 2000. *Globalizations and Social Movements: Culture, Power, and the Transnational Public Sphere*. Ann Arbor: University of Michigan Press.

Gurr, Ted Robert, editor. 1989. *Violence in America: Protest, Rebellion, Reform.* Sage Publications, Inc. Jasper, James M. 1997. *The Art of Moral Protest.* Chicago: The University of Chicago.

Jasper, James M., and Dorothy Nelkin. 1992. *The Animal Rights Crusade: The Growth of a Moral Protest*. New York: Free Press.

- Jenkins, Joseph Craig, and Bert Klandermans, editors. 1995. *The Politics of Social Protest: Comparative Perspectives on States and Social Movements*. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Johnston, Hank, and Bert Klandermans, editors. 1995. Social Movements and Culture: Social Movements, Protest, and Contention, Volume 4. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Keck, Margaret E., and Kathryn Sikkink. 1998. Activists Beyond Borders. Ithaca: Cornell University Press.

Klandermans, Bert. 1997. The Social Psychology of Protest. Oxford: Blackwell Publishers.

- Klandermans, Bert, and Suzanne Staggenborg. 2002. *Methods of Social Movement Research*. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Kriesi, Hanspeter, Ruud Koopmans, Jan Willem Dyvendak, and Marco G. Giugni. 1995. *New Social Movements in Western Europe: A Comparative Analysis*. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Laraña, Enrique, Hank Johnston, and Joseph R. Gusfield, editors. 1994. New Social Movements: From Ideology to Identity. Philadelphia: Temple University Press.
- Lyons, Paul. 1996. *New Left, New Right, and the Legacy of the Sixties*. Philadelphia: Temple University Press.

Luker, Kristin. 1984. Abortion and the Politics of Motherhood. Berkeley: University of California Press.

- Markoff, John. 1996. *Waves of Democracy: Social Movements and Political Change*. Thousand Oaks, CA: Pine Forge Press.
- Mayer, Robert N. 1989. *The Consumer Movement: Guardians of the Marketplace*. Boston: Twayne Publishers.
- McAdam, Doug. 1982. *Political Process and the Development of Black Insurgency*, 1930-1970. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.
- McAdam, Doug. 1988. Freedom Summer. New York: Oxford University Press.
- McAdam, Doug, and David A. Snow, editors. 1997. Social Movements: Readings on Their Emergence, Mobilization, and Dynamics. Los Angeles: Roxbury Publishing Company.
- McAdam, Doug, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer N. Zald. 1996. *Comparative Perspectives on Social Movements: Political Opportunities, Mobilizing Structures, and Cultural Framings*. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- McAdam, Doug, Sidney Tarrow, and Charles Tilly. 2001. *Dynamics of Contention*. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- McCann, Michael W. 1994. *Rights at Work: Pay Equity Reform and the Politics of Legal Mobilization*. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.
- McCarthy, John D., and Mayer N. Zald. 1973. *The Trend of Social Movements in America: Professionalization and Resource Mobilization*. Morristown, NJ: General Learning Press.
- McVeigh, Rory. 2009. The Rise of the Ku Klux Klan. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Melucci, Alberto. 1996. Challenging Codes: Collective Action in the Information Age. London:

Cambridge University Press

- Meyer, David S. 2006. *The Politics of Protest: Social Movements in America*. New York: Oxford University Press.
- Meyer, David S., and Sidney Tarrow, editors. 1998. *The Social Movement Society: Contentious Politics for a New Century*. Boulder: Rowman and Littlefield.
- Morris, Aldon. 1984. The Origins of the Civil Rights Movement: Black Communities Organizing for Change. New York: Free Press.
- Morris, Aldon D., and Carol McClurg Mueller, editors. 1992. *Frontiers in Social Movement Theory*. New Haven: Yale University Press.
- Munson, Ziad. 2008. The Making of Pro-Life Activists. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.

- Oberschall, Anthony. 1993. Social Movements: Ideologies, Interests, and Identities. New Brunswick, NJ: Transaction Publishers.
- Olson, Mancur. 1965. The Logic of Collective Action. Cambridge, MA: Harvard University Press.

Piven, Frances Fox and Richard Cloward. 1979. Poor People's Movements. New York: Vintage Books.

- Polletta, Francesca. 2006. It Was Like A Fever: Storytelling in Protest and Politics. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.
- Rucht, Dieter, editor. 1991. Research on Social Movements: The State of the Art in Western Europe and the USA. Boulder: Westview Press.
- Schock, Kurt. 2005. Unarmed Insurrections: People Power Movements in Nondemocracies. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Scott, Alan. 1990. Ideology and the New Social Movements. London: Unwin Hyman.
- Smith, Jackie. 2008. Social Movements for Global Democracy. Baltimore: Baltimore, MD: Johns Hopkins University Press.
- Smith, Jackie, Charles Chatfield, and Ron Pagnucco, editors. 1997. *Transnational Social Movements and Global Politics* Syracuse University Press.
- Smith, Paul Chaat, and Robert Allen Warrior. 1996. *Like a Hurricane: The Indian Movement from Alcatraz to Wounded Knee*. New York: New Press.
- Snow, David A., Sarah Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. 2004. *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishers.
- Soule, Sarah A. 2010. *Contention and Corporate Social Responsibility*. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Staggenborg, Suzanne. 1991. The Pro-Choice Movement: Organization and Activism in the Abortion Conflict. New York: Oxford University Press.
- Stefancic, Jean, and Richard Delgado. 1996. No Mercy: How Conservative Think Tanks and Foundations Changed America's Social Agenda. Philadelphia: Temple University Press.
- Stryker, Sheldon, Timothy J. Owens, and Robert W. White. 2000. *Self, Identity, and Social Movements*. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Summers-Effler, Erika. 2010. Laughing Saints and Righteous Heroes: Emotional Rhythms in Social Movement Groups. Chicago: University of Chicago Press
- Switzer, Jacqueline Vaughn. 1997. Green Backlash: The History and Politics of Environmental Opposition in the U.S. Boulder, CO: Lynne Rienner Publishers.
- Szasz, Andrew. 1994. *EcoPopulism: Toxic Waste and the Movement for Environmental Justice*. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Tarrow, Sidney. 1998. *Power in Movement: Social Movements and Contentious Politics*. Second Edition. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Tarrow, Sidney. 2005. The New Transnational Activism. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Tilly, Charles. 1995. *Popular Contention in Great Britain*, 1758-1834. Cambridge: Harvard University Press.
- Tilly, Charles. 2003. *Contention and Democracy in Europe, 1650-2000.* New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Tilly, Charles, 2003. The Politics of Collective Violence. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Tilly, Charles. 2004. Social Movements, 1768-2004. New York: Paradigm Publishers.
- Tilly, Charles. 2006. Regimes and Repertoires. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.
- Zald, Mayer N., and John D. McCarthy, editors. 1987. Social Movements in an Organizational Society: Collected Essays. New Brunswick, NJ: Transaction Books.

B. Theoretical Perspectives

1. Resource Mobilization Theory

- Andrews, Kenneth T., Marshall Ganz, Matthew Baggetta, Hahrie Han, and Chaeyoon Lim. 2010. "Leadership, Membership, and Voice: Civic Associations That Work." *American Journal of Sociology* 115:1191-1242.
- Buechler, Steven M. 1993. "Beyond Resource Mobilization?: Emerging Trends in Social Movement Theory." *The Sociological Quarterly* 34:217-235.
- Cable, Sherry. 1984. "Professionalization in Social Movement Organizations: A Case Study of Pennsylvanians for Biblical Morality." *Sociological Focus* 17(4): 287-304.
- Cable, Sherry, Edward J. Walsh, and Rex H. Warland. 1988. "Differential Paths to Political Activism: Comparisons of Four Mobilization Processes After the Three Mile Island Accident." *Social Forces* 66(4): 951-969.
- Cress, Daniel M., and David A. Snow. 1996. "Mobilization at the Margins: Resources, Benefactors, and the Viability of Homeless Social Movement Organizations." *American Sociological Review* 61:1089-1109.
- Edwards, Bob, and John D. McCarthy. 2004. "Resources and Social Movement Mobilization." Pp. 116-152 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by D. A. Snow, S. A. Soule, and H. Kriesi. Oxford: Blackwell Publishing.
- Ferree, Myra Marx. 1992. "The Political Context of Rationality: Rational Choice Theory and Resource Mobilization." Pp. 29-52 in *Frontiers of Social Movement Theory*, edited by Aldon Morris and Carol McClurg Mueller. New Haven: Yale University Press.
- Fireman, Bruce, and William Gamson. 1988. "Utilitarian Logic in the Resource Mobilization Perspective." Pp. 8-44 in *The Dynamics of Social Movements*, edited by M. N. Zald and J. D. McCarthy. Lanham, MD: University Press of America.
- Haines, Herbert H.1984. "Black Radicalization and the Funding of Civil Rights: 1957-1970." *Social Problems* 32: 31-43.
- Jenkins, J. Craig. 1983. "Resource Mobilization Theory and the Study of Social Movements." *Annual Review of Sociology* 9:527-553.
- Jenkins, J. Craig, and Charles Perrow. 1977. "Insurgency of the Powerless: Farm Worker Movements (1946-1972)." *American Sociological Review* 42:249-268.
- Jenkins, J. Craig, and Craig M. Eckert. 1986. "Channeling Black Insurgency: Elite Patronage and Professional Social Movement Organizations in the Development of the Black Movement." *American Sociological Review* 51:812-829.
- Klandermans, Bert. 1984. "Mobilization and Participation: Social-Psychological Expansions of Resource Mobilization Theory." *American Sociological Review* 49:583-600.
- Kleidman, Robert. 1994. "Volunteer Activism and Professionalism in Social Movement Organizations." Social Problems 4:257-276.
- Marwell, Gerald, and Pamela Oliver. 1993. *The Critical Mass in Collective Action: A Micro-Social Theory*. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- McCarthy, John D., and Mark Wolfson. 1996. "Resource Mobilization by Local Social Movement Organizations: Agency, Strategy, and Organization in the Movement against Drinking and Driving." *American Sociological Review* 61:1070-1088.
- McCarthy, John D., and Mayer N. Zald. 1973. *The Trend of Social Movements in America: Professionalization and Resource Mobilization*. Morristown, NJ: General Learning Press.
- McCarthy, John D., and Mayer N. Zald. 1977. "Resource Mobilization and Social Movements: A Partial Theory." *American Journal of Sociology* 82:1212-1241.
- McCarthy, John D. and Mayer N. Zald. 1987. "The Trend of Social Movements in America: Professionalization and Resource Mobilization." Pp. 393-420 in *Social Movements in an Organizational Society: Collected Essays*, edited by Mayer N. Zald and John D. McCarthy. New Brunswick: Transaction Books.

McCarthy, John D., and Mayer N. Zald. 2002. "The Enduring Vitality of the Resource Mobilization Theory of Social Movements." Pp. 533-565 in *Handbook of Sociological Theory*, edited by J. H. Turner. New York: Kluwer Academic/Plenum Publishers.

Oberschall, Anthony. 1973. Social Conflict and Social Movements. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall.

- Oliver, Pamela. 1983. "The Mobilization of Paid and Volunteer Activists in the Neighborhood Movement." *Research in Social Movements, Conflicts and Change* 5: 133-170.
- Oliver, Pamela. 1984. "If You Don't Do It, Nobody Else Will: Active and Token Contributors to Local Collective Action." *American Sociological Review* 49:601-610.
- Oliver, Pamela, and Mark Furman. 1989. "Contradictions Between National and Local Organizational Strength: The Case of the John Birch Society." *International Social Movement Research* 2: 155-177.
- Pichardo, Nelson A. 1988. "Resource Mobilization: An Analysis of Conflicting Theoretical Variables." *The Sociological Quarterly* 29:97-110.
- Soule, Sarah A., and Brayden G. King. 2008. "Competition and Resource Partitioning in Three Social Movement Industries." *American Journal of Sociology* 113:1568-1610.
- Staggenborg, Suzanne. 1988. "The Consequences of Professionalization and Formalization in the Pro-Choice Movement." *American Sociological Review* 53:585-606.
- Walker, Edward T. 2009. "Privatizing Participation: Civic Change and the Organizational Dynamics of Grassroots Lobbying Firms." *American Sociological Review* 74:83-105.
- Walsh, Edward J. 1981. "Resource Mobilization and Citizen Protest in Communities Around Three Mile Island." Social Problems 29(1):1-21.
- Walsh, Edward J. Walsh and Rex H. Warland. 1983. "Social Movement Involvement in the Wake of a Nuclear Accident: Activists and Free Riders in the TMI Area." *American Sociological Review* 48: 764-780.

2. Political Process Model

- Amenta, Edwin and Yvonne Zylan. 1991. "It Happened Here: Political Opportunity, the New Institutionalism, and the Townsend Movement." *American Sociological Review* 56:250-265.
- Amenta, Edwin, Bruce Carruthers, and Yvonne Zylan. 1992. "A Hero for the Aged?: The Townsend Movement, the Political Mediation Model, and the U.S. Old-Age Policy, 1934-1950." American Journal of Sociology 98(2): 308-99.
- Einwohner, Rachel L. 2003. "Opportunity, Honor, and Action in the Warsaw Ghetto Uprising of 1943." American Journal of Sociology 109:650-675.
- Goodwin, Jeff. 2001. No Other Way Out: States and Revolutionary Movements, 1945-1991. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Goodwin, Jess, and James J. Jasper. 1999. "Caught in a Winding, Snarling Vine: The Structural Bias of Political Process Theory." *Sociological Forum* 14:27-54.
- Jasper, James M., and Jess Goodwin. 1999. "Trouble in Paradigms." Sociological Forum 14:107-125.
- Koopmans, Ruud. 1999. "Political. Opportunity. Structure. Some Splitting to Balance the Lumping." Sociological Forum 14:93-105.
- Kurzman, Charles. 1996. "Structural Opportunity and Perceived Opportunity in Social Movement Theory: The Iranian Revolution of 1979." *American Sociological Review* 61:153-170.
- McAdam, Doug. 1982. *Political Process and the Development of Black Insurgency*, 1930-1970. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.
- McAdam, Doug, Sidney Tarrow, and Charles Tilly. 2001. *Dynamics of Contention*. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Meyer, David S. 2004. "Protest and Political Opportunities". Annual Review of Sociology. 30: 125-198.
- Meyer, David S. 1999. "Tending the Vineyard: Cultivating Political Process Research." *Sociological Forum* 14:79-92.
- Meyer, David S. 2006. *The Politics of Protest: Social Movements in America*. Malden, MA: Oxford University Press.

- Meyer, David S. and Debra S. Minkoff. 2004. "Conceptualizing Political Opportunity." *Social Forces* 82:1457-1492.
- Morris, Aldon. 1981. "Black Southern Student Sit-In Movement: An Analysis of Internal Organization." *American Sociological Review* 46:744-767.

Morris, Aldon. 1984. The Origins of the Civil Rights Movement. New York: Free Press.

Polletta, Francesca. 1999. "Snarls, Quacks, and Quarrels: Culture and Structure in Political Process Theory." *Sociological Forum* 14:63-70.

- Tarrow, Sidney. 1999. "Paradigm Warriors: Regress and Progress in the Study of Contentious Politics." Sociological Forum 14:71-77.
- Tarrow, Sidney G. 2011. *Power in Movement: Social Movements and Contentious Politics*. Third Edition. Malden, MA: Cambridge University Press.

Tilly, Charles. 1978. From Mobilization to Revolution. Reading, MA: Addison-Wesley.

- Tilly, Charles. 1995. *Popular Contention in Great Britain, 1758-1834*. Cambridge: Harvard University Press.
- Tilly, Charles. 1999. "Wise Quacks." Sociological Forum 14:55-61.
- Tilly, Charles. 2003. *Contention and Democracy in Europe, 1650-2000.* New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Tilly, Charles, 2003. The Politics of Collective Violence. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Tilly, Charles. 2004. Social Movements, 1768-2004. New York: Paradigm Publishers.
- Tilly, Charles. 2006. Regimes and Repertoires. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.

3. New Social Movements Theories

- Armstrong, Elizabeth, and Mary Bernstein. 2007. "Culture, Power and Institutions: A Multi-Institutional Politics Approach to Social Movements." *Sociological Theory* 26:74-99.
- Buechler, Steven M. 1995 "New Social Movement Theories." The Sociological Quarterly 36:441-464.
- Calhoun, Craig. 1993. "New Social Movements' of the Early Nineteenth Century." *Social Science History* 17:385-427.
- Eder, Klaus. 1985. "The 'New Social Movements': Moral Crusades, Political Pressure Groups, or Social Movements?" *Social Research* 52:869-890.
- Eder, Klaus. 1990. "The Rise of Counter-Culture Movements against Modernity: Nature as a New Field of Class Struggle." *Theory, Culture, and Society* 7(4):21-47.
- Gamson, Josh. 1989. "Silence, Death, and the Invisible Enemy: Aids Activism and Social Movement 'Newness.'" *Social Problems* 36:351-367.
- Johnston, Hank, Enrique Laraña, and Joseph R. Gusfield. 1994. "Identities, Grievances, and New Social Movements." Pp. 3-35 in New Social Movements: From Ideology to Identity, edited by Enrique Laraña, Hank Johnston, and Joseph R. Gusfield. Philadelphia: Temple University Press.
- Kitschelt, Herbert P. 1986. "Political Opportunity Structures and Political Protest: Anti-Nuclear Movements in Four Democracies." *British Journal of Political Science* 16:57-85.
- Kitschelt, Herbert P. 1990. "New Social Movements and the Decline of Party Organization." Pp. 179-208 in *Challenging the Political Order*, edited by Russell J. Dalton and Manfred Kuechler. New York: Oxford University Press.
- Kriesi, Hanspeter. 1989. "New Social Movements and the New Class in the Netherlands." *American Journal of Sociology* 94:1078-1116.
- Kriesi, Hanspeter. 1995. "The Political Opportunity Structure of New Social Movements." Pp. 167-198 in *The Politics of Social Protest*, edited by J. Craig Jenkins and Bert Klandermans. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Kriesi, Hanspeter, Ruud Koopmans, Jan Willem Dyvendak, and Marco G. Giugni. 1995. *New Social Movements in Western Europe: A Comparative Analysis*. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.

- Kriesi, Hanspeter, Ruud Koopmans, Jan Willem Dyvendak, and Marco G. Giugni. 1992. "New Social Movements and Political Opportunities in Western Europe." *European Journal of Political Research* 22:219-244.
- Laraña, Enrique, Hank Johnston, and Joseph R. Gusfield, editors. 1994. New Social Movements: From Ideology to Identity. Philadelphia: Temple University Press.
- Melucci, Alberto. 1980. "The New Social Movements: A Theoretical Approach." Social Science Information 19:199-226.
- Melucci, Alberto. 1996. Challenging Codes. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.

Offe, Claus. 1985 "New Social Movements: Challenging the Boundaries of Institutional Politics." *Social Research* 52: 817-868.

Pichardo, Nelson A. 1997. "New Social Movements: A Critical Review." *Annual Review of Sociology* 32:411-430.

Plotke, David. 1990 "What's So New about New Social Movements?" Socialist Review 20(1):81-102.

Scott, Alan. 1990. Ideology and the New Social Movements. London: Unwin Hyman.

Tucker, Kenneth H. 1991. "How New Are the New Social Movements?" *Theory, Culture, and Society* 8:75-98.

Wieviorka, Michel. 2005. "After New Social Movements." Social Movement Studies 4 (1):1-19.

C. Recent Theoretical Synthesizing

1. Mobilizing Structures

a. General

- Diani, Mario. 2004. "Networks and Participation." Pp. 339-359 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by D. A. Snow, S. A. Soule, and H. Kriesi. Oxford: Blackwell Publishing.
- Gould, Roger V. 1991. "Multiple Networks and Mobilization in the Paris Commune, 1871." *American Sociological Review* 56:716-729.
- King, Brayden G., and Nicholas A. Pearce. 2010. "The Contentiousness of Markets: Politics, Social Movements, and Institutional Change in Markets." *Annual Review of Sociology* 36:249-267.
- Klandermans, Bert. 1992. "The Social Construction of Protest and Multiorganizational Fields." Pp. 77-103 in *Frontiers of Social Movement Theory*, edited by Aldon D. Morris and Carol M. Mueller. New Haven: Yale University Press.
- McCarthy, John D. 1996. "Constraints and Opportunities in Adopting, Adapting, and Inventing." Pp. 141-151 in *Comparative Perspectives on Social Movements: Political Opportunities, Mobilizing Structures, and Cultural Framings*, edited by Doug McAdam, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer Zald. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Minkoff, Debra C. 1994. "The Institutional Structuring of Organized Social Action, 1955-1985." *Research in Social Movements, Conflicts, and Change* 17:135-172.
- Osa, M. 2001. "Mobilizing Structures and Cycles of Protest: Post-Stalinist Contention in Poland, 1954-1959." Mobilization 6:211-231.
- Staggenborg, Suzanne. 1988. "The Consequences of Professionalization and Formalization in the Pro-Choice Movement." *American Sociological Review* 53:585-606.
- Staggenborg, Suzanne. 1998. "Social Movement Communities and Cycles of Protest." *Social Problems* 45:180-204.
- Taylor, Verta. 1989. "Social Movement Continuity: The Women's Movement in Abeyance." *American Sociological Review* 54:761-775.
- Whittier, Nancy. 1997. "Political Generations, Micro-Cohorts, and the Transformation of Social Movements." *American Sociological Review* 62:760-778.

b. Formal Organizations

- Cable, Sherry. 1984. "Professionalization in Social Movement Organizations: A Case Study of Pennsylvanians for Biblical Morality." *Sociological Focus* 17(4): 287-304.
- Clemens, Elisabeth S. 1993. "Organizational Repertoires and Institutional Change: Women's Groups and the Transformation of U.S. Politics, 1890-1920." *American Journal of Sociology* 98: 755-798.
- Clemens, Elisabeth S. 1996. "Organizational Form as Frame: Collective Identity and Political Strategy in the American Labor Movement, 1880-1920." Pp. 205-226 in *Comparative Perspectives on Social Movements: Political Opportunities, Mobilizing Structures, and Cultural Framings*, edited by Doug McAdam, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer Zald. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Clemens, Elisabeth S., and Debra Minkoff. 2004. "Beyond the Iron Law: Rethinking the Place of Organizations in Social Movement Research." Pp. 155-170 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by D. A. Snow, S. A. Soule and H. Kriesi. Oxford, UK: Blackwell.
- Cress, Daniel M., and David A. Snow. 1996. "Mobilization at the Margins: Resources, Benefactors, and the Viability of Homeless Social Movement Organizations." *American Sociological Review* 61:1089-1109.
- Edwards, Bob, and S. Marullo 1995. "Organizational Mortality in a Declining Social Movement: The Demise of Peace Movement Organizations in the End of the Cold War Era." *American Sociological Review* 60:908-927.
- Kleidman, Robert. 1994. "Volunteer Activism and Professionalism in Social Movement Organizations." Social Problems 41:257-276.
- McCarthy, John D., and Mark Wolfson. 1996. "Resource Mobilization by Local Social Movement Organizations: Agency, Strategy, and Organization in the Movement against Drinking and Driving." *American Sociological Review* 61:1070-1088.
- Minkoff, Debra C. 1994. "From Service Provisions to Institutional Advocacy: The Shifting Legitimacy of Organizational Forms." *Social Forces* 72:943-969.
- Minkoff, Debra C. 1995. "Interorganizational Influences on the Founding of African American Organizations, 1955-1985." *Sociological Forum* 10:51-79.
- Minkoff, Debra. 1999. "Bending with the Wind: Strategic Change and Adaptation by Women's and Racial Minority Organizations." *American Journal of Sociology* 104:1666-1703.
- Offe, Claus, and Helmut Wiesenthal. 1980. "Two Logics of Collective Action: Theoretical Notes on Social Class and Organizational Form." *Political Power and Social Theory* 1 (1):67-115.
- Oliver, Pamela, and Mark Furman. 1989. "Contradictions Between National and Local Organizational Strength: The Case of the John Birch Society." *International Social Movement Research* 2: 155-177.
- Staggenborg, Suzanne. 1989. "Stability and Innovation in the Women's Movement: A Comparison of Two Movement Organizations." *Social Problems* 36:75-92.
- Suh, Doowon. 2003. "Leadership Effectiveness and Interorganizational Solidarity Formation." *Research in Social Movements, Conflicts and Change* 24:189-228.
- Walker, Edward T. 2009. "Privatizing Participation: Civic Change and the Organizational Dynamics of Grassroots Lobbying Firms." *American Sociological Review* 74:83-105.
- Zald, Mayer N., and John D. McCarthy, editors. 1987. Social Movements in an Organizational Society: Collected Essays. New Brunswick, NJ: Transaction Books.

2. Political Opportunity Structures

- Amenta, Edwin, and Yvonne Zylan. 1991. "It Happened Here: Political Opportunity, the New Institutionalism, and the Townsend Movement." *American Sociological Review* 56:250-265.
- Brockett, Charles D. 1991. "The Structure of Political Opportunities and Peasant Mobilization in Central America." *Comparative Politics* 23:253-274.
- della Porta, Donatella. 1996. "Social Movements and the State." Pp. 93-121 in *Comparative Perspectives on Social Movements*, edited by Doug McAdam, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer N. Zald. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.

- Diani, Mario. 1996. "Linking Mobilization Frames and Political Opportunities: Insights from Regional Populism in Italy." *American Sociological Review* 61:1053-1069.
- Eisinger, Peter K. 1973. "The Conditions of Protest Behavior in American Cities." *The American Political Science Review* 67:11-28.
- Gamson, William A., and David S. Meyer. 1996. "Framing Political Opportunity." Pp. 275-290 in Comparative Perspectives on Social Movements: Political Opportunities, Mobilizing Structures, and Cultural Framings, edited by Doug McAdam, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer Zald. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Goodwin, Jess, and James J. Jasper. 1999. "Caught in a Winding, Snarling Vine: The Structural Bias of Political Process Theory." *Sociological Forum* 14:27-54.
- Jenkins, J. Craig, and K. Schock. 1992. "Global Structures and Political Processes in the Study of Domestic Political Conflict." *Annual Review of Sociology* 18:161-185.
- Kitschelt, Herbert P. 1986. "Political Opportunity Structures and Political Protest: Anti-Nuclear Movements in Four Democracies." *British Journal of Political Science* 16:57-85.
- Koopmans, Ruud. 1999. "Political. Opportunity. Structure. Some Splitting to Balance the Lumping." Sociological Forum 14:93-105.
- Kriesi, Hanspeter. 1995. "The Political Opportunity Structure of New Social Movements." Pp. 167-198 in *The Politics of Social Protest*, edited by J. Craig Jenkins and Bert Klandermans. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Kriesi, Hanspeter. 2004. "Political Context and Opportunity." Pp. 67-90 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Kriesi, Hanspeter, Ruud Koopmans, Jan Willem Dyvendak, and Marco G. Giugni. 1992. "New Social Movements and Political Opportunities in Western Europe." *European Journal of Political Research* 22:219-244.
- McAdam, Doug. 1996. "Conceptual Origins, Current Problems, Future Directions." Pp. 23-40 in Comparative Perspectives on Social Movements: Political Opportunities, Mobilizing Structures, and Cultural Framings, edited by Doug McAdam, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer Zald. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- McCright, Aaron M., and Riley E. Dunlap. 2003. "Defeating Kyoto: The Conservative Movement's Impact on U.S. Climate Change Policy." *Social Problems* 50: 348-373.
- McCright, Aaron M., and Terry N. Clark. 2006. "The Political Opportunity Structure of the Environmental Movement in U.S. Communities." Pp. 199-240 in *Community and Ecology: Dynamics* of Place, Sustainability, and Politics, edited by Aaron M. McCright and Terry N. Clark. Amsterdam: Elsevier/JAI Press.
- Meyer, David S. 2004. "Protest and Political Opportunities." Annual Review of Sociology 30:125-145.
- Meyer, David S., and Suzanne Staggenborg. 1996. "Movements, Countermovements, and the Structure of Political Opportunity." *American Journal of Sociology* 101:1628-1660.
- Noonan, Rita K. 1995. "Women Against the State: Political Opportunities and Collective Action Frames in Chile's Transition to Democracy." *Sociological Forum* 10:81-111.
- Pedriana, Nicholas and Robin Stryker. 2004. "The Strength of a Weak Agency: Early Enforcement of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Expansion of State Capacity, 1965-1971." American Journal of Sociology 110: 709-760.
- Rucht, Dieter. 1996. "The Impact of National Contexts on Social Movement Structures." Pp. 185-204 in *Comparative Perspectives on Social Movements: Political Opportunities, Mobilizing Structures, and Cultural Framings*, edited by Doug McAdam, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer Zald. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Sabatier, Paul. 1975. "Social Movements and Regulatory Agencies: Toward a More Adequate and Less Pessimistic Theory of Clientele Capture." *Policy Sciences* 6:301-341.

- Soule, Sarah A., Doug McAdam, John McCarthy, and Yang Su. 1999. "Protest Events: Cause or Consequence of State Action?: The U.S. Women's Movement and Federal Congressional Activities, 1956-1979." *Mobilization* 4:239-255.
- Tarrow, Sidney. 1996. "States and Opportunities: The Political Structuring of Social Movements." Pp. 41-61 in Comparative Perspectives on Social Movements: Political Opportunities, Mobilizing Structures, and Cultural Framings, edited by Doug McAdam, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer Zald. New York: Cambridge University Press.

3. Cultural Framing Processes

- Benford, Robert D. 1993. "Frame Disputes within the Nuclear Disarmament Movement." *Social Forces* 71:677-702.
- Benford, Robert D. 1997. "An Insider's Critique of the Social Movement Framing Perspective." *Sociological Inquiry* 67:409-430.
- Benford, Robert D., and David A. Snow. 2000. "Framing Processes and Social Movements: An Overview and Assessment." *Annual Review of Sociology* 26:611-639.
- Ellingson, Stephen. 1995. "Understanding the Dialectic of Discourse and Collective Action: Public Debate and Rioting in Antebellum Cincinnati." *American Journal of Sociology*: 100-144.
- Ferree, Myra Marx. 2003. "Resonance and Radicalism: Feminist Framing in the Abortion Debates of the United States and Germany." *American Journal of Sociology* 109:304-344.
- Ferree, Myra Marx, and David A. Merrill. 2000. "Hot Movements, Cold Cognition: Thinking about Social Movements in Gendered Frames." *Contemporary Sociology* 29:454-462.
- Hewitt, Lyndi, and Holly J. McCammon. 2004. "Explaining Suffrage Mobilization: Balance, Neutralization, and Range in Collective Action Frames, 1892-1919." *Mobilization* 9:149-166.
- Johnston, Hank. 1995. "A Methodology for Frame Analysis: From Discourse to Cognitive Schemata." Pp. 217-246 in *Social movements and Culture*, edited by Hank Johnston and Bert Klandermans. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- McAdam, Doug. 1996. "The Framing Function of Movement Tactics: Strategic Dramaturgy in the American Civil Rights Movement." Pp. 338-355 in *Comparative Perspectives on Social Movements: Political Opportunities, Mobilizing Structures, and Cultural Framings*, edited by Doug McAdam, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer Zald. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- McCaffrey, Dawn, and Jennifer Keys. 2000. "Competitive Framing Processes in the Abortion Debate: Polarization-Vilification, Framing-Saving, and Frame Debunking." *The Sociological Quarterly* 41:41-61.
- McCright, Aaron M., and Riley E. Dunlap. 2000. "Challenging Global Warming as a Social Problem: An Analysis of the Conservative Movement's Counter-Claims." *Social Problems* 47:499-522.
- McVeigh, Rory, Daniel J. Myers, and David Sikkink. 2004. "Corn, Klansmen, and Coolidge: Structure and Framing in Social Movements." *Social Forces* 83(2): 653-690.
- Noonan, Rita K. 1995. "Women Against the State: Political Opportunities and Collective Action Frames in Chile's Transition to Democracy." *Sociological Forum* 10:81-111.
- Pedriana, Nicholas. 2006. "From Protective to Equal Treatment: Legal Framing Processes and Transformation of the Women's Movement in the 1960s." *American Journal of Sociology* 111: 1718-1761.
- Rohlinger, Deana A. 2002. "Framing the Abortion Debate: Organizational Resources, Media Strategies, and Movement-Countermovement Dynamics." *Sociological Quarterly* 43:479-507.
- Snow, David A. 2004. "Framing Processes, Ideology, and Discursive Fields." Pp. 380-412 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Snow, David A., and Robert D. Benford. 1988. "Ideology, Frame Resonance, and Participant Mobilization." *International Social Movement Research* 1:197-217.

- Snow, David A., and Robert D. Benford. 1992. "Master Frames and Cycles of Protest." Pp. 133-155 in Frontiers in Social Movement Theory, edited by A. Morris and C. M. Mueller. New Haven: Yale University Press.
- Snow, David A., E. Burke Rochford, Jr., Steven K. Worden, and Robert D. Benford. 1986. "Frame Alignment Processes, Micromobilization, and Movement Participation." *American Sociological Review* 51:464-481.
- Steinberg, Marc W. 1999. "The Talk and Back Talk of Collective Action: A Dialogic Analysis of Repertoires of Discourse Among Nineteenth-Century English Cotton Spinners." *American Journal of* Sociology 105:736-780.
- Zald, Mayer. 1996. "Culture, Ideology, and Strategic Framing." Pp. 261-274 in Comparative Perspectives on Social Movements: Political Opportunities, Mobilizing Structures, and Cultural Framings, edited by Doug McAdam, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer Zald. New York: Cambridge University Press.

D. Contention Repertoires, Strategies, and Tactics

- Andrews, Kenneth T., and Michael Biggs. 2006. "The Dynamics of Protest Diffusion: Movement Organizations, Social Networks, and News Media in the 1960 Sit-Ins." *American Sociological Review* 71:752-777.
- Burstein, Paul. 1991 "Legal Mobilization as a Social Movement Tactic: The Struggle for Equal Employment Opportunity." *American Journal of Sociology* 96:1201-1225.
- Chwe, Michael Suk-Young. 1999. "Structure and Strategy in Collective Action." American Journal of Sociology 105:128-156.
- Clemens, Elisabeth S. 1993. "Organizational Repertoires and Institutional Change: Women's Groups and the Transformation of U.S. Politics, 1890-1920." *American Journal of Sociology* 98: 755-798.
- Clemens, Elisabeth S. 1996. "Organizational Form as Frame: Collective Identity and Political Strategy in the American Labor Movement, 1880-1920." Pp. 205-226 in *Comparative Perspectives on Social Movements: Political Opportunities, Mobilizing Structures, and Cultural Framings*, edited by Doug McAdam, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer Zald. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Clemens, Elisabeth S. 1997. The People's Lobby: Organizational Innovation and the Rise of Interest Group Politics in the United States, 1890-1925. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.
- Diani, Mario. 1996. "Linking Mobilization Frames and Political Opportunities: Insights from Regional Populism in Italy." *American Sociological Review* 61:1053-1069.
- Earl, Jennifer, Katrina Kimport, Greg Prieto, Carly Rush, and Kimberly Reynoso. 2010. "Changing the World One Webpage at a Time: Conceptualizing and Explaining 'Internet Activism." *Mobilization* 15:425-446.
- Einwohner, Rachel L. 2003. "Opportunity, Honor, and Action in the Warsaw Ghetto Uprising of 1943." American Journal of Sociology 109:650-675.
- Ellingson, Stephen. 1995. "Understanding the Dialectic of Discourse and Collective Action: Public Debate and Rioting in Antebellum Cincinnati." *American Journal of Sociology*: 100-144.
- Gould, Roger. 1991. "Multiple Networks and Mobilization in the Paris Commune." *American Sociological Review* 56: 716-729.
- Jasper, James M. 2004. "A Strategic Approach to Collective Action: Looking for Agency in Social-Movement Choices." *Mobilization* 9:1-16.
- Lipsky, Michael. 1968. "Protest as a Political Resource." *American Political Science Review* 62:1144-1158.
- Macy, Michael W. 1991. "Chains of Cooperation: Threshold Effects in Collective Action." American Sociological Review 55:731-747.
- McAdam, Doug. 1983. "Tactical Innovation and the Pace of Insurgency." *American Sociological Review* 48:735-754.
- McAdam, Doug. 1996. "The Framing Function of Movement Tactics: Strategic Dramaturgy in the American Civil Rights Movement." Pp. 338-355 in *Comparative Perspectives on Social Movements:*

Political Opportunities, Mobilizing Structures, and Cultural Framings, edited by Doug McAdam, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer Zald. New York: Cambridge University Press.

- McAdam, Doug, and Dieter Rucht. 1993. "The Cross-National Diffusion of Movement Ideas." Annals of the American Academy of Political and Social Science 527:56-74.
- Morris, Aldon D. 1993. "Birmingham Confrontation Reconsidered: An Analysis of the Dynamics and Tactics of Mobilization." *American Sociological Review* 58:621-636.
- Myers, Daniel J. 2000. "The Diffusion of Collective Violence: Infectiousness, Susceptibility, and Mass Media Networks." *American Journal of Sociology* 106:173-208.
- Oliver, Pam. 1984. "If You Don't Do It, Nobody Else Will: Active and Token contributors to Local Collective Action." *American Sociological Review* 49:601-610
- Oliver, Pamela E., and Gerald Marwell. 1988. The Paradox of Group Size in Collective Action: A Theory of Critical Mass III." *American Sociological Review* 53:1-8.
- Olzak, Susan, and S. C. Noah Uhrig. 2001. "The Ecology of Tactical Overlap." *American Sociological Review* 56:694-717.
- Soule, Sarah A. 1997. "The Student Divestment Movement in the United States and Tactical Diffusion: The Shantytown Protest." *Social Forces* 75:855-882.
- Soule, Sarah A., and Brayden G. King. 2008. "Competition and Resource Partitioning in Three Social Movement Industries." *American Journal of Sociology* 113:1568-1610.
- Staggenborg, Suzanne. 1988. "The Consequences of Professionalization and Formalization in the Pro-Choice Movement." *American Sociological Review* 53:585-606.
- Steinberg, Marc W. 1999. "The Talk and Back Talk of Collective Action: A Dialogic Analysis of Repertoires of Discourse Among Nineteenth-Century English Cotton Spinners." *American Journal of* Sociology 105:736-780.
- Suh, Doowon. 2003. "Leadership Effectiveness and Interorganizational Solidarity Formation." *Research in Social Movements, Conflicts and Change* 24:189-228.
- Tarrow, Sidney. 1993. "Cycles of Collective Action Between Moments of Madness and the Repertoire of Contention." *Social Science History* 17:281-308.
- Taylor, Verta, and Nella Van Dyke. 2004. "'Get up, Stand up': Tactical Repertoires of Social Movements." Pp. 262-293 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell.
- Tilly, Charles. 2006. Regimes and Repertoires. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.

E. Movement-(Counter)Movement Interaction

1. Countermovements

Aho, James. 1990. The Politics of Righteousness. Seattle: University of Washington Press.

- Allen, Michael Patrick. 1992. "Elite Social Movement Organizations and the State: The Rise of the Conservative Policy-Planning Network." *Research in Politics and Society* 4:87-109.
- Andrews, Kenneth T. 2002. "Movement-Countermovement Dynamics and the Emergence of New Institutions: The Case of 'White Flight' Schools in Mississippi." *Social Forces* 80:911-936.
- Beisel, Nicola. 1997. Imperiled Innocents: Anthony Comstock and Family Reproduction in Victorian America. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- Blee, Kathleen M. 1991. Women of the Klan: Racism and Gender in the 1920s. Berkeley: University of California Press.
- Blee, Kathleen M. 2002. *Inside Organized Racism: Women in the Hate Movement*. Berkeley: University of California Press.
- Diamond, Sara. 1995. *Roads to Dominion: Right-Wing Movements and Political Power in the United States.* New York: Guilford Press.
- Einwohner, R. L. 2002. "Bringing the Outsiders In: Opponents' Claims and the Construction of Animal Rights Activists' Identity." *Mobilization* 7:253-268.

Fetner, Tina. 2001. "Working Anita Bryant: The Impact of Christian Anti-Gay Activism on Lesbian and Gay Movement Claims." *Social Problems* 48:411-428.

Gottfried, Paul. 1993. The Conservative Movement: Revised Edition. New York: Twayne Publishers.

Jasper, James M., and Jane Poulsen. 1993. "Fighting Back: Vulnerabilities, Blunders, and Countermobilization by the Targets in Three Animal Rights Campaigns." Sociological Forum 8:639-657.

Jenkins, J. Craig, and Craig M. Eckert. 1989. "The Corporate Elite, the New Conservative Policy Network, and Reaganomics." *Critical Sociology* 16:121-144.

- Klandermans, Bert, and Nonna Mayer. 2006. Extreme Right Activists in Europe. London: Routledge.
- Koopmans, Ruud, and Susan Olzak. 2004. "Discursive Opportunities and the Evolution of Right-Wing Violence in Germany." *American Journal of Sociology* 110:198-230.
- Lind, Benjamin, and Judith Stephan-Norris. 2011. "The Relationality of Movements: Movement and Countermovement Resources, Infrastructure, and Leadership in the Los Angeles Tenants' Rights Mobilization, 1976-1979." *American Journal of Sociology* 116:1564-1609.
- Lo, Clarence Y. H. 1982. "Countermovements and Conservative Movements in the Contemporary U.S." Annual Review of Sociology 8:107-134.
- Luker, Kristin. 1984. Abortion and the Politics of Motherhood. Berkeley: University of California Press.
- McCaffrey, Dawn, and Jennifer Keys. 2000. "Competitive Framing Processes in the Abortion Debate: Polarization-Vilification, Framing-Saving, and Frame Debunking." *The Sociological Quarterly* 41:41-61.
- McCright, Aaron M., and Riley E. Dunlap. 2000. "Challenging Global Warming as a Social Problem: An Analysis of the Conservative Movement's Counter-Claims." *Social Problems* 47:499-522.
- McCright, Aaron M., and Riley E. Dunlap. 2003. "Defeating Kyoto: The Conservative Movement's Impact on U.S. Climate Change Policy." *Social Problems* 50: 348-373.
- McCright, Aaron M., and Riley E. Dunlap. 2010. "Anti-Reflexivity: The American Conservative Movement's Success in Undermining Climate Science and Policy." *Theory, Culture, and Society* 27(2-3):100-133.
- McVeigh, Rory. 2009. The Rise of the Ku Klux Klan. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- McVeigh, Rory. 1999. "Structural Incentives for Conservative Mobilization: Power Devaluation and the Rise of the Ku Klux Klan, 1915-1925." *Social Forces* 77:1461-1496.
- McVeigh, Rory. 2004. "Structured Ignorance and Organized Racism in the United States." *Social Forces* 82:895-936.
- Meyer, David S., and Suzanne Staggenborg. 1996. "Movements, Countermovements, and the Structure of Political Opportunity." *American Journal of Sociology* 101:1628-1660.
- Meyer, David S., and Suzanne Staggenborg. 1998. "Countermovement Dynamics in Federal Systems." *Research in Political Sociology* 8:209-240.
- Mottl, Tahi L. 1980. "The Analysis of Countermovements." Social Problems 27:620-635.
- Munson, Ziad. 2008. The Making of Pro-Life Activists. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.

Peschek, Joseph G. 1987. *Policy-Planning Organizations: Elite Agendas and America's Rightward Turn.* Philadelphia: Temple University Press.

- Peschek, Joseph G. 1989. "Free the Fortune 500!": The American Enterprise Institute and the Politics of the Capitalist Class in the 1970s." *Critical Sociology* 16:165-180.
- Pichardo, Nelson A. 1995. "The Power Elite and Elite-Driven Countermovements." *Sociological Forum* 10:21-49.
- Ricci, David M. 1993. *The Transformation of American Politics: The New Washington and the Rise of Think Tanks*. New Haven: Yale University Press.
- Rohlinger, Deana A. 2002. "Framing the Abortion Debate: Organizational Resources, Media Strategies, and Movement-Countermovement Dynamics." *Sociological Quarterly* 43:479-507.
- Smith, James Allen. 1991. *The Idea Brokers: Think Tanks and the Rise of the New Policy Elite*. New York: Free Press.

- Stefancic, Jean, and Richard Delgado. 1996. No Mercy: How Conservative Think Tanks and Foundations Changed America's Social Agenda. Philadelphia: Temple University Press.
- Switzer, Jacqueline Vaughn. 1997. Green Backlash: The History and Politics of Environmental Opposition in the U.S. Boulder, CO: Lynne Rienner Publishers.
- Van Dyke, Nella and Sarah A. Soule. 2002. "Explaining Variation in Levels of Patriot and Militia Mobilization: Resources, Political Process, and Strain Explanations." *Social Problems* 49: 497-520.
- Voss, Kim. 1996. "The Collapse of a Social Movement: The Interplay of Mobilizing Structures, Framing, and Political Opportunities in the Knights of Labor." Pp. 227-258 in *Comparative Perspectives on Social Movements: Political Opportunities, Mobilizing Structures, and Cultural Framings*, edited by Doug McAdam, John D. McCarthy, and Mayer Zald. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Zald, Mayer N., and Bert Useem. 1987. "Movement and Countermovement Interaction: Mobilization, Tactics, and State Involvement." Pp. 247-271 in *Social Movements in an Organizational Society: Collected Essays*, edited by Mayer N. Zald and John D. McCarthy. New Brunswick: Transaction.

2. Movement Diffusion

- Andrews, Kenneth T., and Michael Biggs. 2006. "The Dynamics of Protest Diffusion: Movement Organizations, Social Networks, and News Media in the 1960 Sit-Ins." *American Sociological Review* 71:752-777.
- Hedström, Richard. 1994. "Contagious Collectivities: On the Spatial Diffusion of Swedish Trade Unions, 1890-1940." *American Journal of Sociology* 99:1157-1179.
- Hedstrom, Peter, Rikard Sandell, and Charlotta Stern. 2000. "Meso Level Networks and the Diffusion of Social Movements." *American Journal of Sociology* 106:145-172.
- Kitts, James A. 2000. "Mobilizing in Black Boxes: Social Networks and Participation in Social Movement Organizations." *Mobilization* 5:241-257.
- McAdam, Doug. 1995. "'Initiator' and 'Spin-off' Movements." Pp. 217-39 in *Repertoires and Cycles of Collective Action*, edited by M. Traugott. Durham: Duke University Press.
- McAdam, Doug, and Dieter Rucht. 1993. "The Cross-National Diffusion of Movement Ideas." Annals of the American Academy of Political and Social Science 527:56-74.
- Meyer, David S., and Nancy Whittier. 1994. "Social Movement Spillover." Social Problems 41:277-298.
- Minkoff, Debra C. 1997. "The Sequencing of Social Movements." *American Sociological Review* 62:779-799.
- Myers, Daniel J. 2000. "The Diffusion of Collective Violence: Infectiousness, Susceptibility, and Mass Media Networks." *American Journal of Sociology* 106:173-208.
- Oliver, Pamela E., and Daniel J. Myers. 2003. "The Coevolution of Social Movements." *Mobilization* 8:1-24.
- Olzak, Susan, and S. C. Noah Uhrig. 2001. "The Ecology of Tactical Overlap." *American Sociological Review* 56:694-717.
- Strang, David, and Sarah A. Soule. 1998. "Diffusion in Organizations and Social Movements." *Annual Review of Sociology* 24:265-90.
- Soule, Sarah A. 1997. "The Student Divestment Movement in the United States and Tactical Diffusion: The Shantytown Protest." *Social Forces* 75:855-882.
- Soule, Sarah A. 2004. "Diffusion Processes Within and Across Movements." Pp. 294-310 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Van Dyke, Nella. 2003. "Crossing Movement Boundaries." Social Problems 50:228-250.
- Whittier, Nancy. 2004. "The Consequences of Social Movements for Each Other." Pp. 531-551 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Zhao, Dingxin. 1998. "Ecologies of Social Movements: Student Mobilization during the 1989 Prodemocracy Movement in Beijing." *American Journal of Sociology* 103:1493-1529.

F. Micromobilization and Mobilization Potential

1. General

- Beyerlein, Kraig, and David Sikkink. 2008. "Sorrow and Solidarity: Why Americans Volunteered for 9/11 Relief Efforts." *Social Problems* 55:190-215.
- Beyerlein, Kraig, and Kenneth T. Andrews. 2008. "Black Voting During the Civil Rights Movement: A Micro-level Analysis." *Social Forces* 87: 65-93.
- Beyerlein, Kraig, and John R. Hipp. 2006. "A Two-Stage Model for a Two-Stage Process: How Biographical Availability Matters for Social Movement Mobilization." *Mobilization*. 11: 219-240.
- Cable, Sherry, Edward J. Walsh, and Rex H. Warland. 1988 "Differential Paths to Political Activism: Comparisons of Four Mobilization Processes after the Three Mile Island Accident." *Social Forces* 66:951-969.

Della Porta, Donatella. 1988. "Recruitment Processes in Clandestine Political Organizations: Italian Left-Wing Terrorism." *International Social Movement Research* 1:155-169.

- Diani, Mario. 2004. "Networks and Participation." Pp. 339-359 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Francisco, Ronald A. 2004. "After the Massacre: Mobilization in the Wake of Harsh Repression." *Mobilization* 9(2): 107-126.
- Gamson, William A. 1992. "The Social Psychology of Collective Action." Pp. 53-76 in *Frontiers in Social Movement Theory*, edited by Aldon D. Morris and Carol M. Mueller. New Haven: Yale University Press.
- Goodwin, Jeff. 1997. "The Libidinal Constitution of a High-risk Social Movement: Affectual Ties and Solidarity in the Huk Rebellion, 1946 to 1954." *American Sociological Review*: 53-69.
- Gould, Roger V. 1991. "Multiple Networks and Mobilization in the Paris Commune, 1871." American Sociological Review 56(6): 716-729.
- Gould, Roger V. 1993. "Collective Action and Network Structure." *American Sociological Review* 58(2):182-96.
- Hirsch, Eric L. 1990. "Sacrifice for the Cause: Group Processes, Recruitment, and Commitment in a Student Social Movement." *American Sociological Review* 55:243-254.
- Irons, Jenny. 1998. "The Shaping of Activist Recruitment and Participation: A Study of Women in the Mississippi Civil Rights Movement." *Gender & Society* 12:692-709.
- Jasper, James M., and Jane D. Poulsen. 1995. "Recruiting Strangers and Friends: Moral Shocks and Social Networks in Animal Rights and Anti-Nuclear Protests." *Social Problems* 42:493-512.
- Jasper, James M., and Michael P. Young. 2007. "The Rhetoric of Sociological Facts." *Sociological Forum* 22:270-299.
- Jenkins, J. Craig, and Michael Wallace. 1996. "The Generalized Action Potential of Protest Movements: The New Class, Social Trends, and Political Exclusion Explanations." Sociological Forum 11:183-207.
- Kanter, Rosabeth M. 1968. "Commitment and Social Organization: A Study of Commitment." *American Sociological Review* 33: 499-517.
- Kim, Hyojoung, and Peter S. Bearman. 1997. "The Structure and Dynamics of Movement Participation." *American Sociological Review* 62:70-93.
- Kitts, James A. 2000. "Mobilizing in Black Boxes: Social Networks and Participation in Social Movement Organizations." *Mobilization* 5:241-257.
- Klandermans, Bert. 1984. "Mobilization and Participation: Social-Psychological Expansions of Resource Mobilization Theory." *American Sociological Review* 49:583-600.
- Klandermans, Bert. 2002. "How Group Identification Helps to Overcome the Dilemma of Collective Action." *American Behavioral Scientist* 45:887-900.

- Klandermans, Bert. 2004. "The Demand and Supply of Participation: Social Psychological Correlates of Participation in Social Movements." Pp. 360-379 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Klandermans, Bert, and Dirk Oegema. 1987. "Potentials, Networks, Motivations, and Barriers: Steps Towards Participation in Social Movements." *American Sociological Review* 52:519-531.
- Klandermans, Bert, and Sidney Tarrow. 1988. "Mobilization into Social Movements: Synthesizing European and American Approaches." *International Social Movement Research* 1:1-38.
- McAdam, Doug. 1986. "Recruitment to High-Risk Activism: The Case of Freedom Summer." *American Journal of Sociology* 92:64-90.
- McAdam, Doug. 1988. "Micromobilization Contexts and Recruitment to Activism." International Social Movement Research 1:125-154.
- McAdam, Doug. 1992. "Gender as a Mediator of the Activist Experience: The Case of Freedom Summer." *American Journal of Sociology* 97:1211-1240.
- McAdam, Doug, and Ronnelle Paulsen. 1993. "Specifying the Relationship between Social Ties and Activism." *American Journal of Sociology* 99:640-667.
- Morris, Aldon D., and Suzanne Staggenborg. 2004. "Leadership in Social Movements." Pp. 171-196 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Nepstad, Sharon Erickson, and Christian Smith. 2001. "The Social Structure of Moral Outrage in Recruitment to the U.S. Central America Peace Movement." Pp. 158-174 in *Passionate Politics*, edited by J. Goodwin, J. M. Jasper, and F. Polletta. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.
- Oegema, Dirk, and Bert Klandermans. 1994. "Why Social Movement Sympathizers Don't Participate: Erosion and Nonconversion of Support." *American Sociological Review* 59: 703-722.
- Oliver, Pamela. 1983. "The Mobilization of Paid and Volunteer Activists in the Neighborhood Movement." *Research in Social Movements, Conflicts and Change* 5: 133-170.
- Oliver, Pamela. 1984. "If You Don't Do It, Nobody Else Will': Active and Token Contributors to Local Collective Action." *American Sociological Review* 49:601-610.
- Opp, Karl-Dieter. 1988. "Grievances and Participation in Social Movements." American Sociological Review 53"853-864.
- Opp, Karl-Dieter, and Christiane Gern. 1993. "Dissident Groups, Personal Networks, and Spontaneous Cooperation: The East German Revolution of 1989." *American Sociological Review* 58:659-680.
- Opp, Karl-Dieter, and Wolfgang Roehl. 1990. "Repression, Micromobilization, and Political Protest." *Social Forces* 69:521-547.
- Orum, Anthony. 1974. "On Participation in Political Movements." *The Journal of Applied Behavioral Science* 10(2):181-207.
- Passy, Florence. 2001. "Socialization, Connection, and the Structure/Agency Gap: A Specification of the Impact of Networks on Participation in Social Movements." *Mobilization* 6:173-192.
- Robnett, B. 1996. "African-American Women in the Civil Rights Movement, 1954-1965: Gender, Leadership, and Micromobilization." *American Journal of Sociology* 101:1661-1693.
- Schussman, Alan, and Sarah A. Soule. 2005. "Process and Protest: Accounting for Individual Protest Participation." *Social Forces* 84:1083-1108.
- Sherkat, Darren E., and T. Jean Blocker. 1994. "The Political Development of Sixties' Activists: Identifying the Influence of Class, Gender, and Socialization on Protest Participation." Social Forces 72:821-842.
- Snow, David A., and Doug McAdam. 2000. "Identity Work Processes in the Context of Social Movements: Clarifying the Identity/Movement Nexus." Pp. 41-67 in *Self, Identity, and Social Movements*, edited by S. Stryker, T. J. Owens, and R. W. White. Minneapolis, MN: University of Minnesota Press.
- Snow, David A., E. Burke Rochford, Jr., Steven K. Worden, and Robert D. Benford. 1986. "Frame Alignment Processes, Micromobilization, and Movement Participation." *American Sociological Review* 51:464-481.

- Snow, David A., Louis A. Zurcher, Jr., and Sheldon Ekland-Olson. 1980. "Social Networks and Social Movements: A Microstructural Approach to Differential Recruitment." *American Sociological Review* 45:787-801.
- Snow, David A., and Robert D. Benford. 1988. "Ideology, Frame Resonance, and Participant Mobilization." *International Social Movement Research* 1:197-217.
- Taylor, Verta, and Nancy Whittier. 1992. "Collective Identity in Social Movement Communities: Lesbian Feminist Mobilization". Pp. 104-129 in Frontiers in Social Movement Theory, edited by Aldon Morris and Carol Mueller. New Haven, CT: Yale University Press.
- Viterna, Jocelyn S. 2006. "Pulled, Pushed, and Persuaded: Explaining Women's Mobilization into the Salvadoran Guerrilla Army." *American Journal of Sociology* 112:1-45.
- Walsh, Edward J., and Rex H. Warland. 1983. "Social Movement Involvement in the Wake of a Nuclear Accident: Activists and Free Riders in the TMI Area." *American Sociological Review* 48:764-780.

2. Public Support/Opinion

- Banaszak, Lee Ann, and Eric Plutzer. 1993. "The Social Bases of Feminism in the European Community." *Public Opinion Quarterly* 57:29-53.
- Dunlap, Riley E., and Aaron M. McCright. 2008. "Social Movement Identity: Validating a Measure of Identification with the Environmental Movement." *Social Science Quarterly* 89(5):1045-1065.
- Gamson, William A. 2004. "Bystanders, Public Opinion, and the Media." Pp. 242-261 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by D. A. Snow, S. A. Soule and H. Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell.
- Huddy, Leonie, Francis K. Neely, and Marilyn R. Lafay. 2000. "The Polls—Trends: Support for the Women's Movement." *Public Opinion Quarterly* 64:309-350.
- McCright, Aaron M., and Riley E. Dunlap. 2008. "Belief Systems and Social Movement Identity: An Examination of the Consistency of Beliefs about Environmental Problems within the American Public." *Public Opinion Quarterly* 72(4):651-676.
- McCright, Aaron M., and Riley E. Dunlap. 2008. "The Nature and Social Bases of Progressive Social Movement Ideology: Examining Public Opinion toward Social Movements." *The Sociological Quarterly* 49(4):825-848.
- Mertig, Angela G., and Riley E. Dunlap. 1995. "Public Approval of Environmental Protection and Other New Social Movement Goals in Western Europe and the United States." *International Journal of Public Opinion Research* 7:145-156.
- Morrison, Denton. 1986. "How and Why Environmental Consciousness Has Trickled Down." Pp. 187-220 in *Distributional Conflicts in Environmental-Resource Policy*, edited by A. Schnaiberg, N. Watts, and K. Zimmerman. New York: St. Martin's Press.
- Mueller, Carol M., and Thomas Dimieri. 1982. "The Structure of Belief Systems Among Contending ERA Activists." *Social Forces* 60:657-675.
- Mueller, Carol M., and Charles M. Judd. 1981. "Belief Constraint and Belief Consensus." *Social Forces* 60:182-187.
- Stern, Paul C., Thomas Dietz, Troy Abel, Gregory A. Guagano, and Linda Kalof. 1999. "A Value-Belief-Norm Theory of Support for Social Movements." *Human Ecology Review* 6(2):81-97.

G. Collective, Movement, and Organizational Identities

1. General

- Bernstein, Mary. 1997. "Celebration and Suppression: The Strategic Uses of Identity by the Lesbian and Gay Movement." *American Journal of Sociology* 103(3): 531-565.
- Cohen, Jean L. 1985. "Strategy or Identity: New Theoretical Paradigms and Contemporary Social Movements." *Social Research* 663-716.
- Diani, Mario. 1992. "The Concept of Social Movement." The Sociological Review 40:1-25.
- Einwohner, R. L. 2002. "Bringing the Outsiders In: Opponents' Claims and the Construction of Animal Rights Activists' Identity." *Mobilization* 7:253-268.
- Gamson, Joshua. 1995. "Must Identity Movements Self-destruct?: A Queer Dilemma." *Social Problems*: 390-407.
- Gamson, William. 1995. "Constructing Social Protest." Pp. 85-106 in *Social Movements and Culture*, edited by Hank Johnston and Bert Klandermans. University of Minnesota Press.
- Hercus, Cheryl. 1999. "Identity, Emotion, and Feminist Collective Action." Gender & Society 13:34-55.
- Hunt, Scott A., and Robert D. Benford. 1994. "Identity Talk in the Peace and Justice Movement." *Journal* of Contemporary Ethnography 22:488-517.
- Hunt, Scott A., Robert D. Benford, and David A. Snow. 1994. "Identity Fields." Pp. 185-208 in New Social Movements, edited by Enrique Laraña, Hank Johnston, and Joseph R. Gusfield. Temple University Press.
- Johnston, Hank, Enrique Laraña, and Joseph R. Gusfield. 1994. "Identities, Grievances, and New Social Movements." Pp. 3-35 in New Social Movements: From Ideology to Identity, edited by Enrique Laraña, Hank Johnston, and Joseph R. Gusfield. Philadelphia: Temple University Press.
- Kitchell, Anne, Willet Kempton, Dorothy Holland, and Danielle Tesch. 2000. "Identities and Actions Within Environmental Groups." *Human Ecology Review* 7(2):1-20.
- Klandermans, Bert. 1994. "Transient Identities?: Membership Patterns in the Dutch Peace Movement." Pp. 168-184 in *New Social Movements: From Ideology to Identity*, edited by Enrique Laraña, Hank Johnston, and Joseph R. Gusfield. Philadelphia: Temple University Press.
- Polletta, Francesca. 1994. "Strategy and Identity in 1960s Black Protest." *Research in Social Movements, Conflicts and Change* 17:85-114.
- Polletta, Francesca. 1998. "'It Was Like a Fever . . .': Narrative and Identity in Social Protest." *Social Problems* 45:137-159.
- Melucci, Alberto. 1992. "Getting Involved: Identity and Mobilization in Social Movements." Pp. 104-129 in *Frontiers in Social Movement Theory*, edited by Aldon D. Morris and Carol M. Mueller. New Haven: Yale University Press.
- Snow, David A., and Doug McAdam. 2000. "Identity Work Processes in the Context of Social Movements: Clarifying the Identity/Movement Nexus." Pp. 41-67 in *Self, Identity, and Social Movements*, edited by Sheldon Stryker, Timothy J. Owens, and Robert W. White. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Stryker, Sheldon. 2000. "Identity Competition: Key to Differential Social Movement Participation?" Pp. 21-40 in *Self, Identity, and Social Movements*, edited by Sheldon Stryker, Timothy J. Owens, and Robert W. White. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Stryker, Sheldon, Timothy J. Owens, and Robert W. White. 2000. *Self, Identity, and Social Movements*. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.

2. Collective Identity

- Friedman, Debra, and Doug McAdam. 1992. "Collective Identity and Activism: Networks, Choices, and the Life of a Social Movement." Pp. 156-173 in *Frontiers in Social Movement Theory*, edited by Aldon D. Morris and Carol M. Mueller. New Haven: Yale University Press.
- Hunt, Scott A., and Robert D. Benford. 2004. "Collective Identity, Solidarity, and Commitment." Pp. 433-457 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Kuumba, M. B., and F. Ajanaku. 1998. "Dreadlocks: The Hair Aesthetics of Cultural Resistance and Collective Identity Formation." *Mobilization* 3(2):227-243.
- Melucci, Alberto. 1995. "The Process of Collective Identity." Pp. 41-63 in *Social Movements and Culture*, edited by Hank Johnston and Bert Klandermans. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Pfaff, S. 1996. "Collective Identity and Informal Groups in Revolutionary Mobilization: East Germany in 1989." *Social Forces* 75:91-118.
- Polletta, Francesca, and James M. Jasper. 2001. "Collective Identity and Social Movements." *Annual Review of Sociology* 27:283-305.
- Taylor, Verta, and Nancy E. Whittier. 1992. "Collective Identity in Social Movement Communities: Lesbian Feminist Mobilization." Pp. 104-129 in *Frontiers in Social Movement Theory*, edited by Aldon M. Morris and Carol M. Mueller. New Haven: Yale University Press.

3. Movement or Organizational Identity

- Dunlap, Riley E., and Aaron M. McCright. 2008. "Social Movement Identity: Validating a Measure of Identification with the Environmental Movement." *Social Science Quarterly* 89(5):1045-1065.
- Fielding, Kelly S., Rachel McDonald, Winnifred R. Louis. 2008. "Theory of Planned Behavior, Identity, and Intentions to Engage in Environmental Activism." *Journal of Environmental Psychology* 28:318-326.
- McCright, Aaron M., and Riley E. Dunlap. 2008. "Belief Systems and Social Movement Identity: An Examination of the Consistency of Beliefs about Environmental Problems within the American Public." *Public Opinion Quarterly* 72(4):651-676.
- Pichardo Almanzar, Nelson A., Heather Sullivan-Catlin, and Glenn Deane. 1998. "Is the Political Personal?: Everyday Behaviors as Forms of Environmental Movement Participation." *Mobilization* 3(2):185-205.
- Saunders, Clare. 2008. "Double-edged Swords?: Collective Identity and Solidarity in the Environment Movement." *The British Journal of Sociology* 59:227-253.
- Simon, Bernd, Michael Loewy, Stefan Stürmer, Ulrike Weber, Peter Freytag, Corinna Habig, Claudia Kampmeier, and Peter Spahlinger. 1998. "Collective Identification and Social Movement Participation." *Journal of Personality and Social Psychology* 74:646-658.
- Steel, Brent S., Mary Ann. E. Steger, Nicholas P. Lovrich, Jr., and John C. Pierce. 1990. "Consensus and Dissension among Contemporary Environmental Activists: Preservationists and Conservationists in the US and Canadian Context." *Environment and Planning C: Government and Policy* 8:379-393.
- Stürmer, Stefan, and Bernd Simon. 2004. "The Role of Collective Identification in Social Movement Participation: A Panel Study in the Context of the German Gay Movement." *Personality and Social Psychology Bulletin* 30:263-277.
- Stürmer, Stefan, Bernd Simon, Michael Loewy, and Heike Jörger. 2003. "The Dual-pathway Model of Social Movement Participation: The Case of the Fat Acceptance Movement." Social Psychology Quarterly 66:71-82.

H. Movement Outcomes

- Agnone, Jon. 2007. "Amplifying Public Opinion: The Policy Impact of the U.S. Environmental Movement." *Social Forces* 85:1593-1620.
- Amenta, Edwin, and Neal Caren. 2004. "The Legislative, Organizational, and Beneficiary Consequences of State-Oriented Challengers." Pp. 461-488 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Amenta, Edwin, Neal Caren, Elizabeth Chiarello, and Yang Su. 2010. "The Political Consequences of Social Movements." *Annual Review of Sociology* 36:287-307.
- Amenta, Edwin, Neil Caren and Sheera Joy Olasky. 2005. "Age for Leisure? Political Mediation and the Impact of the Pension Movement on U.S. Old Age Policy. *American Sociological Review* 70:516-539.
- Andrews, Kenneth. 1997. "The Impact of Social Movements on the Political Process: The Civil Rights Movement and Black Electoral Politics in Mississippi. *American Sociological Review* 62(5): 800-819.
- Andrews, Kenneth T. 2001. "Social Movements and Policy Implementation: The Mississippi Civil Rights Movement and the War on Poverty, 1965-1971." *American Sociological Review* 66:71-95.
- Banaszak, Lee Ann. 1996. Why Movements Succeed or Fail. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- Burstein, Paul. 1998. "Bringing the Public Back In." Social Forces 77:27-62.
- Burstein, Paul. 1999. "Social Movements and Public Policy." Pp. 3-21 in *How Social Movements Matter*, edited by Marco Giugni, Doug McAdam, and Charles Tilly. University of Minnesota Press.
- Burstein, Paul, and April Linton. 2002. "The Impact of Political Parties, Interest Groups, and Social Movement Organizations on Public Policy: Some Recent Evidence and Theoretical Concerns." *Social Forces* 81: 381-408.
- Burstein, Paul, Rachel L. Einwohner, and Jocelyn A. Hollander. 1995. "The Success of Political Movements: A Bargaining Perspective." Pp. 275-295 in *The Politics of Social Protest: Comparative Perspectives on States and Social Movements*, edited by J. Craig Jenkins and Bert Klandermans. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Cress, Daniel, and David Snow. 2000. "The Outcomes of Homeless Mobilization: The Influence of Organization, Disruption, Political Mediation, and Framing." *American Journal of Sociology* 105(4): 1063-1104.
- Earl, Jennifer. 2004. "The Cultural Consequences of Social Movements." Pp. 508-530 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Fendrich, James M. 1977. "Keeping the Faith or Pursuing the Good Life: A Study of the Consequences of Participation in the Civil Rights Movement." *American Sociological Review* 42:144-157.
- Frey, Scott R., Thomas Dietz, and Linda Kalof. 1992. "Characteristics of Successful American Protest Groups: Another Look at Gamson's Strategy of Social Protest." *American Journal of Sociology* 98:368-387.
- Gamson, William. [1975] 1990. The Strategy of Social Protest. Homewood, IL: Dorsey.
- Giugni, Marco. 1998. "Was It Worth the Effort? The Outcomes and Consequences of Social Movements." *Annual Review of Sociology* 98: 371-393.
- Giugni, Marco. 1999. "How Social Movements Matter: Past Research, Present Problems, Future Developments." Pp. xiii-xxxiii in *How Social Movements Matter*, edited by Marco Giugni, Doug McAdam, and Charles Tilly. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Giugni, Marco G. 2004. "Personal and Biographical Consequences." Pp. 489-507 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Giugni, Marco, Doug McAdam, and Charles Tilly. 1999. *How Social Movements Matter*. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Halebsky, Stephen. 2006. "Explaining the Outcomes of Antisuperstore Movements: A Comparative Analysis of Six Communities." *Mobilization* 11(4): 443-460.

- Hasso, Frances S. 2001. "Feminist Generations?: The Long-Term Impact of Social Movement Involvement on Palestinian Women's Lives." *American Journal of Sociology* 107:586-611.
- King, Brayden G. and Sarah A. Soule. 2007. "Social Movements as Extra-Institutional Entrepreneurs: The Effect of Protests on Stock Price Returns." *Administrative Science Quarterly* 52:413-442.
- Luders, Joseph E. 2010. *The Civil Rights Movement and the Logic of Social Change*. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- McAdam, Doug. 1989. "The Biographical Consequences of Activism." *American Sociological Review* 54:744-760.
- McAdam, Doug, and Cynthia Brandt. 2009. "Assessing the Effects of Voluntary Youth Service: The Case of Teach for America." *Social Forces* 88:945-969.
- McAdam, Doug, and Yang Su. 2002. "The War at Home: Antiwar Protests and Congressional Voting, 1965 to 1973." *American Sociological Review* 67:696-721.
- McCammon, Holly J., Karen Campbell, Ellen M. Granberg, and Christine Mowery. 2001. "How Movements Win: Gendered Opportunity Structures and U.S. Women's Suffrage Movements, 1866-1919." American Sociological Review 66:49-70.
- McCammon, Holly J., and Melinda Kane. 1997. "Shaping Judicial Law in the Post-World War II Period: When Is Labor's Legal Mobilization Successful? "Sociological Inquiry 67: 275-98.
- McVeigh, Rory, Michael R. Welch, and Thoroddur Bjarnason. 2003. "Hate Crime Reporting as a Successful Social Movement Outcome." *American Sociological Review* 68:843-867.
- Piven, Frances Fox, and Richard Cloward. 1977. Poor People's Movements. New York: Pantheon Books.
- Rochon, Thomas R., and Daniel A. Mazmanian. 1993. "Social Movements and the Policy Process." *Annals of the American Academy of Political and Social Sciences* 528:75-87.
- Schumaker, Paul. 1975. "Policy Responsiveness to Protest Group Demands." *Journal of Politics* 37:488-521.
- Sherkat, Darren E., and T. Jean Blocker. 1997. "Explaining the Political and Personal Consequences of Protest." *Social Forces* 75:1049-1076.
- Skrentny, John David. 2006. "Policy Elite Perceptions and Social Movement Success: Understanding Variations in Group Inclusion in Affirmative Action." *American Journal of Sociology* 111: 1762-1815.
- Soule, Sarah A., and Susan Olzak. 2004. "When Do Movements Matter?: The Politics of Contingency and the Equal Rights Amendment." *American Sociological Review* 69:473-497.
- Taylor, Verta, and Nicole C. Raeburn. 1995. "Identity Politics as High Risk Activism: Career Consequences for Lesbian, Gay, and Bisexual Sociologists." *Social Problems* 42:252-273.
- Whittier, Nancy. 2004. "The Consequences of Social Movements for Each Other." Pp. 531-551 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Tilly, Charles. 1999. "From Interactions to Outcomes in Social Movements." Pp. 253-270 in *How Social Movements Matter*, edited by Marco Giugni, Doug McAdam, and Charles Tilly. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.

I. Special Topics

1. Cycles of Contention and Abeyance

- Frank, A. G., and M. Fuentes. 1994. "On Studying the Cycles in Social Movements." *Research in Social Movements, Conflicts and Change* 17:173-196.
- Koopmans Ruud. 1993. "The Dynamics of Protest Waves: West Germany, 1965 to 1989." American Sociological Review 58:637-658.
- Koopmans, Ruud. 2004. "Protest in Time and Space: The Evolution of Waves of Contention." Pp. 19-46 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- McAdam, Doug. 1995. "'Initiator' and 'Spin-off' Movements." Pp. 217-39 in *Repertoires and Cycles of Collective Action*, edited by M. Traugott. Durham: Duke University Press.
- McAdam, Doug, and Dieter Rucht. 1993. "The Cross-National Diffusion of Movement Ideas." Annals of the American Academy of Political and Social Science 527:56-74.
- Osa, M. 2001. "Mobilizing Structures and Cycles of Protest: Post-Stalinist Contention in Poland, 1954-1959." *Mobilization* 6:211-231.
- Snow, David A., and Robert D. Benford. 1992. "Master Frames and Cycles of Protest." Pp. 133-155 in Frontiers in Social Movement Theory, edited by A. Morris and C. M. Mueller. New Haven: Yale University Press.
- Soule, Sarah A. 2004. "Diffusion Processes Within and Across Movements." Pp. 294-310 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Staggenborg, Suzanne. 1989. "Stability and Innovation in the Women's Movement: A Comparison of Two Movement Organizations." *Social Problems* 36:75-92.
- Staggenborg, Suzanne. 1998. "Social Movement Communities and Cycles of Protest: The Emergence and Maintenance of a Local Women's Movement." *Social Problems* 45:180-204.
- Tarrow, Sidney. 1993. "Cycles of Collective Action Between Moments of Madness and the Repertoire of Contention." *Social Science History* 17:281-308.
- Taylor, Verta. 1989. "Social Movement Continuity: The Women's Movement in Abeyance." *American Sociological Review* 54:761-775.
- Whittier, Nancy. 1997. "Political Generations, Micro-Cohorts, and the Transformation of Social Movements." *American Sociological Review* 62:760-778.

2. State Repression and Policing

- Adams, Jacqueline. 2000. "Movement Socialization in Art Workshops: A Case from Pinochet's Chile." Sociological Quarterly 41 (4): 615-638.
- Almeida, Paul D. 2003. "Opportunity Organizations and Threat-Induced Contention: Protest Waves in Authoritarian Settings." *American Journal of Sociology* 109:345-400.
- Barkan, Steven E. 1984. "Legal Control of the Southern Civil Rights Movement." *American Sociological Review* 49:552-565.
- Brockett, Charles. 1993. "A Protest Cycle Resolution of the Repression/Popular-Protest Paradox." *Social Science History* 17:457-484.
- Davenport, Christian. 2007. "State Repression and Political Order." *Annual Review of Political Science* 10:1-23.
- Davenport, Christian. 2010. *Media Bias, Perspective, and State Repression: The Black Panther Party.* Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Davenport, Christian. 2007. *State Repression and the Domestic Democratic Peace*. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Davenport, Christian, Hank Johnston, and Carol Mueller. 2005. *Repression and Mobilization*. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.

- Della Porta, Donatella, and Herbert Reiter, editors. 1998. *Policing Protest: The Control of Mass Demonstrations in Western Democracies*. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Earl, Jennifer. 2003. "Tanks, Tear Gas and Taxes: Toward a Theory of Movement Repression." Sociological Theory 21:44-68.
- Earl, Jennifer. 2011. "Political Repression: Iron Fists, Velvet Gloves, and Diffuse Control." *Annual Review of Sociology* 37: 261-284.
- Earl, Jennifer, Sarah A. Soule, and John D. McCarthy. 2003. "Protests Under Fire?: Explaining Protest Policing." *American Sociological Review* 69:581-606.
- Francisco, Ronald A. 2004. "After the Massacre: Mobilization in the Wake of Harsh Repression." *Mobilization* 9(2): 107-126.
- Khawaja, Marwan. 1993. "Repression and Popular Collective Action: Evidence from the West Bank." Sociological Forum 8:47-71.
- Koopmans, Ruud. 1997. "Dynamics of Repression and Mobilization: The German Extreme Right in the 1990s." *Mobilization*:149-165.
- Linden, Annette, and Bert Klandermans. 2006. "Stigmatization and Repression of Extreme-Right Activism in the Netherlands." *Mobilization* 11:213-228.
- Loveman, Mara. 1998. "High-Risk Collective Action: Defending Human Rights in Chile, Uruguay, and Argentina." *American Journal of Sociology* 104(2): 477-525.
- McCarthy, John D., Andrew W. Martin and Clark McPhail. 2007 "Policing Disorderly Campus Protests and Convivial Gatherings: The Interaction of Threat, Social Organization, and First Amendment Guarantees." *Social Problems* 54: 274-296.
- McCarthy, John D., Clark McPhail, and John Crist. 1999. "The Diffusion and Adoption of Public Order Management Systems." Pp. 71-93 in *Social Movements in a Globalizing World*, edited by H. Kriesi, D. Della Porta , and D. Rucht. New York: St. Martin's Press.
- Opp, Karl-Dieter and Wolfgang Roehl. 1990. "Repression, Micromobilization, and Political Protest." Social Forces 69:521-547.
- Rasler, Karen. 1996. "Concessions, Repression, and Political Protest in the Iranian Revolution." *American Sociological Review* 61:132-152.
- Smith, Christian. 1996. Resisting Reagan. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.
- White, R. W. 1999. "Comparing State Repression of Pro-State Vigilantes and Anti-State Insurgents: Northern Ireland, 1972-75." *Mobilization* 4(2): 189-202.

3. Culture and Ideology

- Armstrong, Elizabeth A., and Mary Bernstein. 2008. "Culture, Power, and Institutions: A Multi-Institutional Politics Approach to Social Movements." *Sociological Theory* 26:74-99.
- Benford, Robert D., and Scott A. Hunt. 1992. "Dramaturgy and Social Movements: The Social Construction and Communication of Power." *Sociological Inquiry* 62 (1):36-55.
- Diani, Mario. 2000. "The Relational Deficit of Ideologically Structured Action." Mobilization 5:17-24.
- Ferree, Myra Marx, and David A. Merrill. 2000. "Hot Movements, Cold Cognition: Thinking about Social Movements in Gendered Frames." *Contemporary Sociology* 29:454-462.
- Fine, Gary Alan. 1995. "Public Narration and Group Culture: Discerning Discourse in Social Movements." *Social Movements and Culture* 4: 127-143.
- Gamson, William. 1995. "Constructing Social Protest." Pp. 85-106 in *Social Movements and Culture*, edited by Hank Johnston and Bert Klandermans. University of Minnesota Press.
- Hart, Stephen. 1996. "The Cultural Dimension of Social Movements: A Theoretical Reassessment and Literature Review." *Sociology of Religion* 57 (1): 87-100.
- Johnston, Hank and Bert Klandermans, editors. 1995. Social Movements and Culture. Minneapolis, MN: University of Minnesota Press.
- Johnston, Hank and Bert Klandermans. 1995. "The Cultural Analysis of Social Movements." Pp. 3-24 in *Social Movements and Culture*, edited by Hank Johnston and Bert Klandermans. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.

Johnston, Hank, and Pamela E. Oliver. 2000. "Breaking the Frame." Mobilization 5:61-64.

- Kane, Anne E. 1997. "Theorizing Meaning Construction in Social Movements: Symbolic Structures and Interpretation During the Irish Land War, 1879-1882." *Sociological Theory* 15 (3): 249-276.
- Klandermans, Bert. 2000. "Must We Redefine Social Movements as Ideologically Structured Action?" *Mobilization* 5:25-30.
- McAdam, Doug. 1994. "Culture and Social Movements." Pp. 36-57 in *New Social Movements: From Ideology to Identity*, edited by Enrique Laraña, Hank Johnston, and Joseph R. Gusfield. Philadelphia: Temple University Press.
- McCright, Aaron M., and Riley E. Dunlap. 2008. "The Nature and Social Bases of Progressive Social Movement Ideology: Examining Public Opinion toward Social Movements." *The Sociological Quarterly* 49(4):825-848.
- Morris, Aldon, and Naomi Braine. 2001. "Social Movements and Oppositional Consciousness." Pp. 20-37 in *Oppositional Consciousness: The Subjective Roots of Social Protest*, edited by Jane Mansbridge and Aldon Morris, Chicago: University of Chicago Press.
- Pattillo-McCoy, Mary. 1998. "Church Culture as a Strategy of Action in the Black Community." American Sociological Review 63(6): 767-84.
- Polletta, Francesca. 2005. "How Participatory Democracy Became White: Culture and Organizational Choice." *Mobilization* 10:271-288.
- Oliver, Pamela E., and Hank Johnston. 2000. "What a Good Idea!: Ideologies and Frames in Social Movement Research. *Mobilization* 4:37-54.
- Scott, Alan. 1990. Ideology and the New Social Movements. London: Unwin Hyman.
- Snow, David A. 2004. "Framing Processes, Ideology, and Discursive Fields." Pp. 380-412 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Snow, David A., and Robert D. Benford. 1988. "Ideology, Frame Resonance, and Participant Mobilization." *International Social Movement Research* 1:197-217.
- Snow, David A., and Robert D. Benford. 2000. "Clarifying the Relationship between Framing and Ideology." *Mobilization* 5:55-60.
- Swidler, Ann. 1995. "Cultural Power and Social Movements." Pp. 25-40 in *Social Movements and Culture*, edited by Hank Johnston and Bert Klandermans. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Taylor, Verta, and Nancy Whittier. 1995. "Analytical Approaches to Social Movement Culture." Pp. 163-187 in *Social Movements and Culture*, edited by Hank Johnston and Bert Klandermans. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press.
- Westby, David L. 2002. "Strategic Imperative, Ideology, and Frame." Mobilization 7:287-304.
- Williams, Rhys H. 1995. "Constructing the Public Good: Social Movements and Cultural Resources." *Social Problems*: 124-144.
- Zald, Mayer N. 1996. "Culture, Ideology, and Strategic Framing." Pp. 261-274 in *Comparative Perspectives on Social Movements*, edited by D. McAdam, J. McCarthy, and M. Zald. New York: Cambridge University Press.

Zald, Mayer N. 2000. "Ideologically Structured Action." Mobilization 5:1-16.

Zald, Mayer N. 2000. "New Paradigm? Nah! New Agenda? I Hope So." Mobilization 5:31-36.

4. Emotions

- Aminzade, Ron, and Doug McAdam. 2001. "Emotions and Contentious Politics." Pp. 14-50 in *Silence and Voice in the Study of Contentious Politics*, edited by R. Aminzade, J. A. Goldstone, D. McAdam, E. J. Perry, W. H. J. Sewell, S. Tarrow, and C. Tilly. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Cadena-Roa, J. 2002. "Strategic Framing, Emotions, and Superbarrio-Mexico City's Masked Crusader." *Mobilization* 7(2): 201-216.
- Emirbayer, Mustafa, and Chad Goldberg. 2005. "Pragmatism, Bourdieu, and Collective Emotions in Contentious Politics." *Theory and Society* 34: 469-518.
- Goodwin, Jeff. 1997. "The Libidinal Constitution of a High-Risk Social Movement: Affectual Ties and Solidarity in the Huk Rebellion, 1946 to 1954." *American Sociological Review* 62:53-69.
- Goodwin, Jeff, and James Jasper. 2006. "Emotions and Social Movements," Pp. 611-635 in *Handbook of the Sociology of Emotions*, edited by Jan E. Stets and Jonathan H. Turner. New York: Springer.
- Goodwin, Jeff, James M. Jasper, and Francesca Polletta. 2000. "The Return of the Repressed: The Fall and Rise of Emotions in Social Movement Theory." *Mobilization* 5(1): 65-84.
- Goodwin, Jeff, James M. Jasper, and Francesca Polletta, editors. 2001. *Passionate Politics: Emotions and Social Movements*. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.
- Goodwin, Jeff, James M. Jasper, and Francesca Polletta. 2004. "Emotional Dimensions of Social Movements." Pp. 413-432 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Gould, Deborah B. 2009. *Moving Politics: Emotion and Act Up's Fight Against AIDS*. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.
- Hercus, Cheryl. 1999. "Identity, Emotion, and Feminist Collective Action." Gender & Society 13:34-55.
- Jasper, James. 1997. The Art of Moral Protest. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.
- Jasper, James M. 1998. "The Emotions of Protest: Affective and Reactive Emotions In and Around Social Movements." *Sociological Forum* 13:397-424.
- Klandermans, Bert. 1997. *The Social Psychology of Protest*. Minneapolis, MN: University of Minnesota Press.
- Summers-Effler, Erika. 2002. "The Micro Potential for Social Change: Emotion, Consciousness, and Social Movement Formation." *Sociological Theory* 20(1): 41-60.
- Summers-Effler, Erika. 2010. Laughing Saints and Righteous Heroes: Emotional Rhythms in Social Movement Groups. Chicago: University of Chicago Press
- Wood, Elisabeth Jean. 2001. "The Emotional Benefits of Insurgency in El Salvador." Pp. 267-281 in Passionate Politics, edited by J. Goodwin, J. M. Jasper, and F. Polletta. Chicago: University of Chicago Press.

5. Media

- Almeida, Paul D., and Mark I. Lichbach. 2003. "To the Internet, from the Internet: Comparative Media Coverage of Transnational Protest." *Mobilization* 8 (3): 249-272.
- Amenta, Edwin, Neal Caren, Sheera Joy Olasky, and James E. Stobaugh. 2009. "All the Movements Fit to Print: Who, What, When, Where, and Why SMOs Appeared in the New York Times in the Twentieth Century." *American Sociological Review* 74:636-56.
- Andrews, Kenneth T., and Michael Biggs. 2006. "The Dynamics of Protest Diffusion: Movement Organizations, Social Networks, and News Media in the 1960 Sit-Ins." *American Sociological Review* 71:752-777.
- Andrews, Kenneth T., and Neal Caren. 2010. "Making the News: Movement Organizations, Media Attention, and the Public Agenda." *American Sociological Review* 75:841-866.
- Bimber, Bruce, Andrew J. Flanagin, and Cynthia Stohl. 2005. "Reconceptualizing Collective Action in the Contemporary Media Environment." *Communication Theory* 15:365-388.
- Earl, Jennifer, and Alan Schussman. 2003. "The New Site of Activism: On-Line Organizations, Movement Entrepreneurs, and the Changing Location of Social Movement Decision Making." *Research in Social Movements, Conflicts and Change* 24: 155-187.

- Earl, Jennifer, Andrew Martin, John D. McCarthy and Sarah A. Soule. 2004. "The Use of Newspapers in Studying Collective Action." *Annual Review of Sociology* 30: 65-80.
- Earl, Jennifer, and Katrina Kimport. 2011. *Digitally Enabled Social Change Activism in the Internet Age*. Cambridge, MA: MIT Press.
- Gamson, William A. 2004. "Bystanders, Public Opinion, and the Media." Pp. 242-261 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by D. A. Snow, S. A. Soule and H. Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell.
- Gamson, William, and Andre Modigliani. 1989.""Media Discourse and Public Opinion on Nuclear power: A Constructionist Approach." *American Journal of Sociology* 95:1-37.
- Gamson, William A. and Gadi Wolfsfeld. 1993. "Movements and Media as Interacting Systems." Annals of the American Academy of Political and Social Science 528:114-125.
- Hug, Simon, and Domonique Wisler. 1998. "Correcting for Selection Bias in Social Movement Research." *Mobilization* 3:141-161.
- Martin, Andrew W. 2005. "Addressing the Selection Bias in Media Coverage of Strikes: A Comparison of Mainstream and Specialty Print Media." *Research in Social Movements, Conflicts and Change* 26: 143-178.
- McCarthy, John D., Clark McPhail, and Jackie Smith. 1996. "Images of Protest: Dimensions of Selection Bias in Media Coverage of Washington Demonstrations, 1982 and 1991." *American Sociological Review* 61(3): 478-99.
- McCarthy, John D., Larissa Titarenko, Clark McPhail, Patrick S. Rafail, and Boguslaw Augustyn. 2008. "Assessing Stability In The Patterns Of Selection Bias In Newspaper Coverage Of Protest During The Transition From Communism In Belarus." *Mobilization* 13:127-146.
- Mueller, Carol. 1997. "International Press Coverage of East German Protest Events, 1989." *American Sociological Review* 62:820-832.
- Mueller, Carol. 1997. "Media Measurement Models of Protest Event Data." Mobilization 2:165-184.
- Myers, Daniel J., and Beth Schaefer Caniglia. 2004. "All the Rioting That's Fit to Print: Selection Effects in National Newspaper Coverage of Civil Disorders, 1968-1969." *American Sociological Review* 69:519-543.
- Oliver, Pamela E., and Daniel J. Myers. 1999. "How Events Enter the Public Sphere: Conflict, Location, and Sponsorship in Local Newspaper Coverage of Public Events." *American Journal of Sociology* 105:38-87.
- Oliver, Pamela, and Gregory M. Maney. 2000. "Political Processes and Local Newspaper Coverage of Protest Events: From Selection Bias to Triadic Interactions." *American Journal of Sociology* 106:463-505.
- Ortiz, David G., Daniel J. Myers, N. Eugene Walls, and Maria-Elena D. Diaz. 2005. "Where Do We Stand with Newspaper Data?" *Mobilization* 10:397-419.
- Rohlinger, Deanna A. 2002. "Framing the Abortion Debate: Organizational Resources, Media Strategies, and Movement-Countermovement Dynamics." *The Sociological Quarterly* 43(4): 479-507.
- Roscigno, Vincent, and William Danaher. 2001. "Media and Mobilization: The Case of Radio and Southern Textile Worker Insurgency, 1929 to 1934." *American Sociological Review* 66:21-48.
- Sampedro, Victor. 1997. "The Media Politics of Social Protest." Mobilization 2:185-205.
- Smith, Jackie., John D. McCarthy, Clark McPhail, and Boguslaw Augustyn. 2001. "From Protest to Agenda Building: Description Bias in Media Coverage of Protest Events in Washington, D.C." Social Forces 79:1397-1423.

6. Globalization and International/Transnational Activism

Almeida, Paul D. and Mark I. Lichbach. 2003. "To the Internet, from the Internet: Comparative Media Coverage of Transnational Protest." *Mobilization* 8 (3): 249-272.

Auyero, Javier. 2001. "Glocal Riots." International Sociology 16:33-53.

Ballard, Richard, Adam Habib, Imraan Valodia, and Elke Zuern. 2005. "Globalization, Marginalization and Contemporary Social Movements in South Africa." *African Affairs* 104 (417):615-634.

- Bandy, Joe, and Jackie Smith. 2005. *Coalitions Across Borders: Transnational Protest and the Neoliberal Order*. Rowman & Littlefield.
- Bennett, Lance. 2004. "Communicating Global Activism: Strengths and Vulnerabilities of Networked Politics." Pp. 123-146 in *Cyberprotest: New Media, Citizens and Social Movements*, edited by W. van de Donk, B. D.Loader, P. G. Nixon, and D. Rucht. New York Routledge.
- Bennett, W. Lance. 2004. "Social Movements Beyond Borders: Understanding Two Eras of Transnational Activism." Pp. 203-226 in *Transnational Protest and Global Activism*, edited by Donatella della Porta and Sidney Tarrow. Boulder, CO: Rowman and Littlefield.
- Boudreau, Vincent. 1996. "Northern Theory, Southern Protest: Opportunity Structure Analysis in Cross-National Perspective." *Mobilization* 1(2): 175-189.
- Byrd, Scott C. 2005. "The Porto Alegre Consensus: Theorizing the Forum Movement." *Globalizations* 2(1):151-163.
- Caniglia, Beth S. 2001. "Informal Alliances vs Institutional Ties: The Effects of Elite Alliances on Environmental TSMO Networks." *Mobilization* 6(1): 37-54.
- Chabot, S. 2000. "Transnational Diffusion and the African American Reinvention of Gandhian Repertoire." *Mobilization* 5(2): 201-216.
- della Porta, Donatella, and Sidney Tarrow, editors. 2004. *Transnational Protest and Global Activism*. Boulder, CO: Rowman and Littlefield.
- Fisher, Dana R., Kevin Stanley, David Berman, and Gina Neff. 2005. "How Do Organizations Matter?: Mobilization and Support for Participants at Five Globalization Protests." *Social Problems* 52:102-121.
- Keck, Margaret E., and Kathryn Sikkink. 1998. *Activists Beyond Borders*. Ithaca: Cornell University Press.
- Keck, Margaret E., and Kathryn Sikkink. 1998. "Transnational Advocacy Networks in the Movement Society." Pp. 217-238 in *The Social Movement Society*, edited by David S. Meyer and Sidney Tarrow. Boulder: Rowman and Littlefield.
- Loveman, Mara. 1998. "High-Risk Collective Action: Defending Human Rights in Chile, Uruguay and Argentina." *American Journal of Sociology*. 104:477-525.
- Maney, Gregory M. 2001. "Transnational Structures and Protest: Linking Theories and Assessing Evidence." *Mobilization* 6(1):83-100.
- McAdam, Doug, and Dieter Rucht. 1993. "The Cross-National Diffusion of Movement Ideas." Annals of the American Academy of Political and Social Science 528:56-74.
- Smith, Jackie. 2001. "Globalizing Resistance: The Battle of Seattle and the Future of Social Movements." *Mobilization* 6:1-19.
- Smith, Jackie. 2004. "The World Social Forum and the Challenges of Global Democracy." *Global Networks* 4 (4): 413-421.
- Smith, Jackie. 2004. "Transnational Processes and Movements." Pp. 311-335 in *The Blackwell Companion to Social Movements*, edited by David A. Snow, Sarah A. Soule, and Hanspeter Kriesi. Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishing.
- Smith, Jackie. 2008. Social Movements for Global Democracy. Baltimore, Md.: Johns Hopkins University Press.
- Smith, Jackie, Charles Chatfield, and Ron Pagnucco, editors. 1997. *Transnational Social Movements and Global Politics* Syracuse University Press.
- Smith, Jackie and Dawn Wiest. 2005. "The Uneven Geography of Global Civil Society: National and Global Influences on Transnational Association." *Social Forces* 84:621-652.

Tarrow, Sidney. 2001. "Transnational Politics." Annual Review of Political Science 4:1-20.

Tarrow, Sidney. 2005. The New Transnational Activism. New York: Cambridge University Press.